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Gidgee Healing remains committed to 
acknowledging the Kalkadoon people as the 
traditional owners of Mt Isa and the land 

where our service originated.

We also acknowledge the traditional owners 
of the lower gulf region and communities 
where we are committed to delivering 

quality care for Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander people.
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OUR ESSENCE  
– THE GIDGEE WOOD

The name Gidgee Healing is a tribute to the Gidyea  
or Gidgee tree, which is native to Mount Isa — 
Kalkadoon Country — and other arid regions of Australia. 
The tree has special significance to our traditional owners 
who have used it extensively for generations. 

As an Aboriginal Health Service, the essence of Gidgee Healing embodies 
the healing properties of its namesake plant in a literal sense, however, 
there are other parallels with the tree and its use that are deeply 
ingrained in the DNA of the organisation. Resilience, healing, shelter, 
community, tradition, comfort, and care are all qualities associated with 
the use of the Gidgee tree and are embedded in our ethos. 

The phrase ‘Gidgee Wood’ has become synonymous with the Gidgee 
Healing philosophy – the Gidgee Way. It’s how we talk about the way 
we do things. The Gidgee Way or The Gidgee Wood is at the core of our 
purpose and principles and permeates everything we do. It’s our litmus 
test and sense-check. It’s the measure, mode and means by which we 
deliver services and make decisions. It underpins our vision, mission and 
values and represents our present and our future. And it’s the mirror we 
hold up to ourselves.
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Just as the abundant healing and nurturing qualities of the 
Gidgee tree work across different spheres, so too does Gidgee 
Healing’s approach to wellness. We are committed to working 
with every individual as a whole being – mind, body, and spirit – 
not just a series of symptoms and pathologies to be ‘fixed’. Our 
approach to healing embraces the physical, mental, emotional 
and cultural dimensions of everyone in our care. 

OUR HEART: 

The health and wellbeing of the communities in our region. 
The Gidgee Wood is embodied in our heart — our ‘why’ —  
by being Community Controlled, and empowering the Mob 

OUR SPIRIT: 

The people and organisations behind our actions 

OUR MIND: 

The thought, planning and structures that support our actions

OUR ACTIONS:

 — The services and programs that we deliver
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GOAL • VISION • VALUES
OUR GOAL 

To provide high quality, sustainable and comprehensive Primary Health Care 
services that are culturally safe, responsive to community needs and integrated 
with other complementary service providers.

OUR VISION

To make a significant and growing contribution towards achieving equity 
 in health outcomes for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples  
across our geographic service area, including the Mount Isa, North West  
and Lower Gulf regions. 

OUR VALUES

Cultural respect – Gidgee Healing recognises the cultural diversity that exists 
amongst its clients and respects the rights, views, values and expectations of 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples in service delivery.

Health sector responsibility – Gidgee Healing recognises that, while responsibility 
for improvement of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health rests with the health 
system as a whole, it can play a key role in ensuring responsiveness of the sector.

Holistic approach – Gidgee Healing has adopted a view of health that encompasses 
the wellbeing of an individual, family and community, and recognises the broader 
social, cultural, spiritual and environmental influences on health.

Community control of primary healthcare – Gidgee Healing supports community 
control, participation and decision making as a fundamental component of the health 
system. 

Building capacity – Gidgee Healing recognises the ongoing need to build capacity 
for improved health outcomes through both its own services and mainstream 
services, as well as through workforce, physical infrastructure and data management. 

Working together – Gidgee Healing recognises the importance of working with  
a range of government, non-government and private providers to ensure coordination 
of efforts for maximum benefits to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people.

Local decision making – Gidgee Healing is committed to local level consultation  
and input to health service planning and delivery.

Accountability – Gidgee Healing is committed to improving the health of the 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community of Mount Isa and the other 
communities in our geographic area.

Promoting good health – Gidgee Healing recognises the importance of illness 
prevention as a fundamental component of its health service delivery.
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CHAIRPERSON’S MESSAGE

Yet another year of change and challenge has seen Gidgee Healing further 
develop our organisational maturity. The looming spectre of COVID-19 
has continued to hang over us as a potential threat to our vulnerable 
communities and the impact of the pandemic shapes everything we do.  
This has affected the entire Aboriginal Community Controlled Health sector 
as everyone has doubled down to support the health and wellbeing of First 
Nations People. We are unwavering in our commitment to provide holistic, 
comprehensive health care services that are culturally safe and responsive  
to community needs.

The Gidgee Wood — our essence — remains part of our DNA and continues to 
define us. For the last four years we have structured our annual report to reflect 
this philosophy and our approach to providing primary health care to Indigenous 
communities in our region. We presented our achievements in our annual report 
in a way that acknowledges our philosophy of working with every individual as 
a whole being — heart, spirit, mind, body — not just a series of symptoms and 
pathologies to be ‘fixed’. While this format has been a differentiator for Gidgee,  
this year we have simplified the structure of the report by removing these elements 
as headings. The themes of the Gidgee Wood are embedded throughout the 
content and — as you can see on this page — we have used them as the guiding 
structure of our key leadership reports.

KEY POINTS 
• COVID-19: The ‘new normal’ for delivering Aboriginal health care services
• Introducing aged care services
• Informing Queensland’s Health Equity Strategy 
• Focus on cultural risk 
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OUR SPIRIT

Our spirit shines through the actions of our employees, our partners, and all  
the people, communities, and organisations who make it possible to deliver  
our programs and services.

During the period we have contributed to Queensland Health’s health equity 
reform agenda and associated discussion paper, Making Tracks towards health 
equity with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples: working together to 
achieve life expectancy parity by 2031. This is the first time a discussion paper 
has been co-designed and jointly written by Queensland Health and QAIHC on 
behalf of ATSICCHOs in Queensland. The paper is a call to action to generate wider 
discussions, mobilise effort and build collective support across the health system  
and society for a renewed and focused agenda centred on First Nations health equity. 
The next step for Gidgee Healing will be to work with our regional hospital and health 
services to develop a health equity strategy.

During 2020-21 we’ve collaborated with the people of Mornington Island  
to implement a Community Controlled model for providing health services.  
This was the result of many meetings and discussions, and we worked closely  
with the local council to identify how the model would best work for them. 

We are very pleased to have re-signed the tripartite agreement with the Western 
Queensland Primary Health Network and North West Hospital and Health Service. 
Working with these partners is key to our ability to serve the communities of the Gulf 
and we are grateful to have been able to bring other organisations like Community 
Health Councils and the Royal Flying Doctor Service (RFDS) into the fold in this latest 
iteration of the agreement. 

The Nukal Murra Alliance has continued to strengthen and grow this year. It now 
helps patients of five Aboriginal medical services to access the support they need  
to manage chronic health issues.

With the introduction of aged care services to our portfolio, we have welcomed a new 
workforce to the Gidgee family. Caring for our older community members is an honour 
and privilege. We are still bedding in this new aspect of our services and our aged 
care workers have a wealth of knowledge and experience that will enable us to offer 
fully integrated whole-of-life health care services. 

OUR HEART

The health and wellbeing of the people in our communities remains at  
the heart of everything we do. The COVID-19 pandemic has been the biggest 
threat and challenge for the Aboriginal Community Controlled Health sector over 
the last 12 months. Finding ways to keep our communities healthy and safe has 
caused ongoing anxiety for health care providers across the board. It has forced 
us to be innovative in the way that we deliver services and optimise an already 
stretched medical workforce further dwindled by the need to ramp up staffing 
 to manage multiple breakouts on the east coast. 
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OUR MIND

Our organisational mindset is reflected in our strategy, 
governance, and business planning and processes. 
Strategically, we have continued to focus on bedding down business systems, 
structures, and practices to build organisational maturity and consolidate  
the exponential growth of the last seven years. And although taking on aged 
care has been a departure from this intent, doing so was a strategic decision 
to enable us to provide whole-of-life suite of services. 

Ensuring our governance model remains appropriate and relevant for all the 
communities we serve has stayed a high priority this year. Unfortunately our 
commitment to 12 months of community engagement was curtailed because of 
COVID-19 travel restrictions and we have been unable to conduct Board meetings  
in our communities as intended. While we have lost some momentum on the 
revision of our governance structure, the working group and allocated funding 
remain in place, and we have established our terms of reference and action plan. 

We have had a sharp focus on strengthening our risk management this year. 
The discovery of a fraud issue that resulted in a deficit outcome for the 2019-20 
financial year has given us pause for reflection. We have worked with the executive 
at a governance level to implement mechanisms designed to prevent such an event 
reoccurring and ensure the future financial stability of Gidgee Healing. While there 
will be a deficit outcome again this year, we are confident that the measures we 
have put in place will reverse this trend over time.

Cultural risk is a significant consideration for our organisation. We have been 
working with our risk management consultants to incorporate this factor in our 
risk framework and embed cultural responsiveness and appropriateness in our 
practices. We are committed to listening to all our communities around cultural 
safety to ensure we meet our responsibility in this regard. 

The end of this period will see an election for all the board roles at our Annual  
General Meeting where our communities have the opportunity to influence  
the strategic leadership of their health care service. 
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OUR ACTIONS

Our services and programs are the most fundamental way we demonstrate our 
philosophy. Over the period, we threw everything into our public health response 
to make sure our most vulnerable populations continue to be protected against 
COVID-19. One of our biggest fears has been that the virus might infiltrate one  
of our communities. To date, with the support of our health service partners,  
we have been successful in keeping it at bay through diligent biosecurity measures.

Our expansion into aged care has been a significant change to our services, which  
we are still bedding down. We are honoured to be providing culturally appropriate 
care to our older community members. We are also very cognisant that this has been 
a stretch for us. We consulted broadly with community councils and other community 
controlled organisations before taking it on and there was enormous support for 
Gidgee to lead the service across the Gulf. We are listening carefully to our experienced 
aged care workforce and feedback from the community about how we can best serve 
our respected Elders.

Across our entire service portfolio, we continue to be challenged by the volatility  
of resourcing, now exacerbated by the demand for medical professionals to resource 
the response to the pandemic on the eastern seaboard. We continue to support  
and develop our own home grown talent in an effort to counter our reliance on  
a FIFO workforce, which leaves us exposed to resource instability.

LOOKING FORWARD

As we look ahead to what the next 12 months might bring, we are focussed on 
returning Gidgee to our original Mount Isa home in Burke Street. The closure of 
the clinic last year due to catastrophic water damage sent ripples through the local 
community — it was the heart and soul of Community Controlled health care in Mount 
Isa for many years. At the time of writing, we are in the final throes of purchasing the 
old premises to restore Gidgee’s primary health care services to their original home.
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CEO’S MESSAGE

As Gidgee Healing continues to evolve as an Aboriginal Community Controlled 
Health Organisation (ACCHO), the last 12 months have challenged us to manage  
a range of conflicting priorities and demands from our external environment. 
While we have further expanded our service offering, we have also persisted  
with our efforts to consolidate exponential growth in previous years. It’s important 
to us — to me — that we don’t over-stretch our capability so that we can focus on 
delivering high quality integrated health care to our communities. There’s no doubt 
it’s a very fine line to walk.

OUR HEART

Delivering culturally appropriate holistic, integrated health care will always remain 
the heart of what we do. However, doing so in the face of a pandemic has not been 
without its challenges. For us, taking care of people’s health and well-being has always 
been about connecting face-to-face. Sharing cups of tea. Yarning. But in keeping our 
communities safe and protected from COVID-19, this has simply not been possible. 
And I can’t help but feel that this takes away from delivering on our heart commitment. 
It has meant more changes for our community to adapt to. Changes that had to be 
made quickly, with no chance to consult with our communities. We simply had to 
fall in line with the rest of the nation. And while we’ve done our best to adapt to the 
circumstances, working with patients remotely, virtually, and disconnected makes our 
hearts heavy.

An exciting development during the year has been the opportunity to acquire the 
old Burke Street clinic property in Mount Isa. This was the original home of Gidgee 
Healing, and we are delighted to think that our heart in Mt Isa will once again beat 
where it first came to life, paying homage and respect to past, while looking to  
Gidgee Healing’s future. 

KEY POINTS
• The dilemma of culturally responsive care in a global pandemic 
• New corporate structure and appointment of CFO 
• Aged care service — ramping up a $5M business in three months 
• Tripartite agreement renewed
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OUR SPIRIT

There is a wide and complex network of people and organisations 
who enable us to deliver our services. These relationships 
continue to evolve and strengthen, and we are honoured that 
the essence of our values and beliefs is shared by so many of  
our stakeholders.
Our tripartite agreement with the Western Queensland Primary Health Network  
and North West Hospital and Health Service has been fundamental to our ability  
to deliver health care services to communities across the Gulf since 2017. We were 
pleased to renew our commitment to this partnership towards the end of 2020.  
The latest iteration of the agreement includes other like-minded organisations such  
as the Mornington Island Health Council, and the Royal Flying Doctor Service who 
have played vital roles in working with Gidgee to provide health care services to  
the people of the Gulf.

Our history, relationships and past performance have held us in good stead  
with our partners and funders this year while we undertook some major work  
like expanding into aged care, while investigating and addressing a serious 
case of fraud. Both expanding the business and the investigation challenged us, 
however the trust and strength of the relationships with our partners held strong 
during that time. We are grateful for the faith and resilience of these connections.

COVID-19 has played its part in further strengthening our partnerships with other 
service providers. As increasing numbers of medical personnel were drawn into 
supporting the COVID-19 response on the east coast, resources in northwest 
Queensland were under more and more pressure. This was felt by every health care 
provider in the region. Gidgee aligned even more closely with our health care partners 
to manage the shortage of medical personnel, endeavouring to fill each other’s gaps 
and stand together as a health network rather than individual health services. 

This experience has highlighted the ongoing need for local growth and development 
of employees. Building a home grown workforce has remained high on our agenda 
this year, and with the addition of aged care services, we have been considering  
how we position training for existing and new employees. The new aged care 
portfolio means that we will have more local jobs on offer, and new education 
pathways to attain the necessary qualifications. Retaining and developing suitably 
credentialled professionals will be a focus in coming years, so that we can sustain  
a workforce to provide quality aged care services for our elders and communities  
in which they live. Aged care is another opportunity for Gidgee to ’open up’ another 
option for our people who aspire to work in the health industry. In the coming 
months we will carefully consider and implement more learning and development 
opportunities so that we can support more people on their career journey with Gidgee. 
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OUR MIND

As our organisation matures, our strategy, structures, systems, 
and processes become even more important. These are the 
frameworks that enable us to deliver our services. 
Discovering a case of fraud this year has been a huge wake-up call. We are relieved 
that we caught it when we did. Addressing the issue has made us look closely at  
our risk management and governance framework and implement changes to prevent 
a future recurrence and reverse the resulting budget deficit. 

Engaging a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and establishing a strong corporate services 
team this year has been a huge leap forward in our organisational maturity. Although 
it has been formed for less than a year, the team has already been integral in building 
the systems and structures that our organisation now needs to remain sustainable 
and resilient into the future. We feel very fortunate to have this knowledge and 
expertise. Remote and rural organisations like ours often find it difficult to attract  
and retain people of this calibre to fulfil the role of CFO. I am looking forward to seeing 
the positive change that this team will bring about in the next 12 months. 
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LOOKING FORWARD

I’m excited about the next twelve months for Gidgee Healing — from where I sit, there is a mountain  
of work that equates to a great deal of promise. We are looking forward to bedding down our aged care 
portfolio and learning with our communities how to be a better service provider in this area. With a new 
corporate services team guided by an accomplished CFO, we have better visibility of our capacity which will 
give us the space to consolidate our growth and become great at the things we do, before we take on more. 

We have expanded our portfolios and therefore more capital works projects are planned. Some of those 
we have been working to initiate for quite some time. We believe that providing better accommodation 
and facilities for our staff in Gulf communities will have a huge positive impact on the quality of our service 
delivery. These are very close to coming to fruition and we will be thrilled to watch these new facilities 
come to life. Not the least of these is the redevelopment of the Burke Street Clinic — the original home  
of Gidgee Healing.

OUR ACTIONS

Our services, programs and care model continue to define us. Gidgee Healing 
will always be shaped by what we do with our communities. 

to compromise the care of our older community 
members. It has been a huge undertaking, with 
a lot of unknowns. We have been in a transition 
period for the first six months, and we still have 
a long way to go. But we are glad to have this 
opportunity to take care of the elders in our 
communities with the respect they deserve. 

We are continuing to mature the model for 
our flagship Social and Emotional Wellbeing 
program. We intended this to be a cornerstone 
of care, embedded across our entire services 
portfolio. Achieving this will mean that we are 
truly providing holistic and preventative care. 
We remain focussed on achieving this ideal of 
an integrated approach that will ultimately help 
to build resilience in our communities and avert 
the tragic mental health crises devastating First 
Nations peoples. 

Our communities are constantly challenged from 
a social and emotional wellbeing perspective. 
As an Aboriginal Health Service, we believe that 
Gidgee Healing has a responsibility to realise a 
truly holistic and preventative approach with the 
basic tenet being social and emotional wellbeing. 
This is a challenge to accomplish when the 
Australian health system is built upon a reactive 
model that treats health — including mental 
health — as a series of clinical pathologies to be 
‘fixed’. Gidgee is committed to doing it our way 
and a way that best fits our community.

All our service delivery over the last 12 months  
has been overshadowed by our COVID-19 
response, which continues to have a massive 
impact on service delivery. Embracing what is 
probably now the ‘new normal’, we have made  
a huge shift from traditional face-to-face service 
delivery to telehealth and other contactless means 
of providing services. Gidgee Healing now has a 
dedicated telehealth team, supported by federal 
funding. We also initiated the COVID-19 vaccine 
rollout in Mount Isa and worked with the North 
West Hospital and Health Service for roll out in 
our communities, prioritising our staff, and elderly 
and high risk patients. Despite the challenges of 
inconsistencies between state and federal policy, 
and difficulties with supply, during the reporting 
period we delivered 124 vaccinations to First 
Nations people. Gidgee will continue our efforts 
 in COVID-19 screening and vaccine roll out to 
protect our communities from this deadly virus.

The addition of aged care means that Gidgee 
Healing can now deliver health services across 
whole of life. This has been a major undertaking, 
and while it has stretched our resources, it has 
been an important addition to our portfolio, and 
a very deliberate one. The decision to take on this 
$5M portfolio was considered and agreed in just 
three months. With the previous provider exiting 
the region and no prospect of another service with 
whom we might partner, we were not prepared 
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OUR BOARD

Shaun Solomon – Chair
Shaun is a Birri and Ewamian man who has lived in the North West for most 
his life and has been working in Mount Isa for the past fifteen years. Indigenous 
Health and Higher Education has been the focus of Shaun’s career, which has 
enabled him to work closely with the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples 
of North West Queensland. Shaun also sits as a member of the North Queensland 
Training Network.

Mona Phillips – Director
Mona is a Jaru/Waanyi woman who has an extensive history of working in 
and around the Gulf and North-Western Queensland as well as the Northern 
Territory. Mona’s work experience covered a wide range in social health, including 
health promotion, alcohol and drug addictions and domestic and family violence. 
At the age of fifty, Mona gained a Social Science Degree in Aboriginal Community 
Management & Development. Mona was a founding member and has been on  
the Gidgee Healing board since 2014. Now retired, Mona is a passionate 
champion for Aboriginal affairs.

Michael Martin – Director
Michael Martin OAM FCPA is a skilled based Director and was appointed  
in 2013. He is Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee and provides Financial 
Management leadership to the Board. Michael lives in the Northern Territory 
where he is active in Health and is a member of a number of Government 
Boards. Michael is committed to Indigenous Health and was National Chair of 
Men’s Health in 1999 and 2000. He travels to Mt Isa regularly on Board matters.

Leann Shaw — Deputy Chair
Leann is Nugubu and Wik woman who has a long history of working in various 
health and social services across the region, including alcohol, tobacco and other 
drugs and women’s health and issues. Leann is committed to Indigenous rights 
and ensuring community is supported to achieve better health and well-being.
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Darren Walden – Director
Darren is Waanyi and Gangalidda man with family and cultural links to 
Doomadgee and other Lower Gulf communities. Darren has lived in and worked 
in Mt Isa for around thirty years which includes experience with local Native Title 
Boards and approximately twenty years working directly in the Aboriginal health 
field. He is a strong advocate for the community.

Patricia Richards – Director
Patricia is a Waluwarra woman from the Georgina River. She is deeply involved 
with the local Mt Isa community and works within the Department of Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander Partnership. Patricia’s community involvement is 
one of her greatest assets. She volunteers with various sporting organisations, 
working across remote communities within the north west region to build strong 
relationships and partnerships with government, non-government and the private 
sector within these communities. Patricia was appointed to the Board in 2019 to 
fill a casual vacancy. 

Alan Nyhuis — Director 
Alan Nyhuis has been a Mount Isa local since 2013. With a background in law 
and social work, he is passionate about using his knowledge and experience  
to promote Indigenous interests, particularly in the health and wellbeing space.  
Alan has extensive experience in the community services sector, working with 
families and young people at risk and in crisis. 

James Cripps — Director
Originating from the Palawa nation, James’s family (Riley) comes from Cape Barren 
Island, Flinders Island and mainland Tasmania. James came to Mount Isa in 2013, 
to work with Queensland Health as a senior member of the Mental Health and 
ATODS team. He joined the board in 2019, bringing a wealth of experience in the 
prevention and reduction of alcohol and other substance abuse in metropolitan, 
rural and remote Indigenous communities. James spent a year as Service Manager 
at the Normanton Recovery Centre and serves on boards and committees of 
numerous Indigenous advocacy groups.
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OUR STRATEGY 
Our essence is at the core of organisational strategy. It drives the 
thinking behind our strategic pillars which are our guiding principles.

 

Improve health outcomes for 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander people in the region

Partner with 
the Indigenous 
Community to 

improve health 
outcomes

Maintain a strong 
and sustainable 
governance and 
business model

Developing and 
empowering  
our workforce

Implement an innovative 
and collaborative 
approach to planning  
and service delivery

Our essence is at the core of 
organisational strategy. It drives the 
thinking behind our strategic pillars 

which are our guiding principles.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

EXTERNAL STRUCTURES

Gidgee Healing operates as a public company 
limited by guarantee. We are subject to the rules 
and regulations of the Corporations Act as set 
out by the Australian Securities and Investments 
Corporation (ASIC). We are also a registered 
charity, regulated by the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission (ACNC).

Importantly, we are also Community Controlled. This 
means that the community can have a say in how the 
organisation is governed, and that eligible members 
can participate in general meetings, nominate as 
candidates for the Board, and serve as Directors.

We maintain financial accounts in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and undertake 
an external audit each year in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards.

BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The overall control and oversight of Gidgee 
Healing is the responsibility of the Board, which 
sets the strategic direction and performance 
targets, and monitors progress towards achieving 
those targets. Operational responsibility for 
performance is delegated to management, under 
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. 

The Board is comprised of up to seven Elected 
Directors chosen by the members, and up to two 
Skills-Based Directors appointed by the Elected 
Directors. Each Director brings specific skills and 
expertise that support the organisation’s strategic 
direction and goals. The Board is well-placed to 
provide the leadership and governance oversight 
needed by the organisation.

The Board also establishes sub-committees 
from time to time to help it achieve its objectives. 
A strong Audit and Risk Committee is in place 
to contribute to good governance and provide 
directors with a more detailed understanding of the 
company’s financial affairs and risk environment. 

AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE

Gidgee Healing operates a Board Audit and Risk 
Committee (ARC). The ARC contributes to the 
good governance of the organisation and support 
directors with regards to the company’s financial 
affairs and risk environment.

The ARC’s role and responsibilities include: 

 · Reporting financial information to the Board  
and users of financial reports 

 · Reviewing the annual financial statements
 · Overseeing the financial performance of  

Gidgee Healing and providing an independent 
assessment to the Board

 · Reviewing significant financial issues including 
complex and unusual transactions 

 · Ensuring the independence of the external auditor 
 · Reviewing the company’s risk appetite and 

tolerance
 · Reviewing and assessing categories of risk 
 · Ensuring there is a risk management strategy  

in place
 · Ensuring there is an operational risk plan to 

mitigate major risks 
 · Reporting annually to the Board on Gidgee 

Healing’s risk position 
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CLINICAL GOVERNANCE

Effective clinical governance is fundamental 
to providing a safe and consistent health 
service. The most functional clinical models 
embed ownership of governance throughout 
the organisation, making clinical governance 
everyone’s business. While we have always 
practised good clinical governance as a 
component of our corporate governance, the 
ongoing evolution of our clinical governance 
framework is critical to our advancement as a 
community controlled health service provider. 

This year has seen a concerted and collaborative 
effort to implement and consolidate clinical 
governance frameworks and strategies that better 
enable us to provide more holistic care in the four 
domains of preventative health care (primary, 
secondary, tertiary, and quaternary). We have 
provided staff with more training and a more 
transparent understanding of what we want to 
achieve, which has been reflected in a better clinical 
flow and respect for each discipline.

Being a large organisation in terms of both 
employees and geographic distribution, our 
framework strategies are implemented on a more 
personal level. Whilst our over-arching policies, 
procedures, tools, and processes are designed to 

focus on accountability of each site, we have taken 
the extra step of identifying and tailoring our clinical 
framework structure to a more profession specific 
model from frontline staff through to our executives. 
This has improved the clinical governance 
knowledge of staff who otherwise may not have 
had much exposure to it previously.

As any framework or strategy, it does however 
highlight some issues of concern. What has stood out 
is our response time to issues logged in our clinical 
governance management tool. Moving forward, we 
will focus on reducing time to action by enabling 
our people to feel more comfortable and confident 
in not only using the tool, but also increasing their 
proficiency in identifying any incidents or concerns 
that do not align with the clinical governance 
framework. Building knowledge and capability will 
help to further reduce incidents. Seeing that issues 
are addressed in a timely manner will encourage 
community to share feedback and concerns. 

The framework is structured with a focus on 
accountability at each location, overseen by the 
Senior Medical Officer and Clinical Governance 
Committee, with ultimate accountability falling to 
the Board of Directors. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Gidgee Healing upholds a systematic approach to identifying, mitigating and 
managing risk. Risk management is embedded in all our practices from clinical 
services through to events and everything in between. We maintain a risk 
management framework that is regularly updated as new risks are identified.  
Staff across the organisation continue to track and manage risks on a day-to-day  
basis under the oversight of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Board.

QUALITY
ISO 9000 AND OTHER QUALITY SYSTEMS

We maintain a cycle of continuous improvement for our quality management 
systems. Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) is embedded in our clinical 
governance framework. During the 2021 financial year, we maintained ISO 
9001 and AGPAL accreditation for our Mount Isa and Normanton primary 
health care and allied health services. Our quality management system is 
facilitated through LOGIQC safety, quality and risk management software 
which is developed specifically for the health care sector.

19



OUR PEOPLE 

Gidgee’s Human Resources Team has now been established for two years 
and continues to mature. We are committed to our goal of becoming an 
Aboriginal Employer of Choice, and our target of 75% Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander representation in our workforce. Our whole Human 
Resources team identifies as Indigenous.

Our organisational culture change program has continued during the 
2021 financial year and remained focussed on our goal of emulating the 
democratised nature of our communities, practising equality, collectivism 
and empowerment. Our people understand the importance of hierarchy 
in an organisational structure, without an authoritarian approach. Our 
guiding principle is to treat everyone equally and fairly, with a willingness 
to accept the different viewpoints of our peers. 

One of the greatest highlights for the whole organisation this year has 
been the introduction of aged care to the Gidgee Healing portfolio. The 
HR team has been excited to welcome our new workforce to the Gidgee 
family and has successfully onboarded staff at all three aged care facilities.

Indigenous

21

79
Male

Female198
TOTAL  EMPLOYEES
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SYSTEMS AND SUPPORT

We’ve maintained our efforts to develop systems, processes, and procedures  
to support our people to do their job effectively, safely, and consistently. 

EMPLOYEE SELF-SERVICE SYSTEM

During the year we implemented an employee self-service portal using Enable 
HR cloud based software. This increases efficiency and empowers employees 
to drive their own record management. It also supports our recruitment and 
workplace relations functions.

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

We have continued with the EAP provider that was engaged last year. The 
Assure program is highly regarded by our people who have found great benefit 
in being able to access responsive in-person support, even in our remote 
communities. The program has psychologists and counsellors physically based in 
Mount Isa and offers face-to-face consultations for Gidgee employees in all the 
regions we serve. They also provide specialist Indigenous support.

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Training, capacity building, and professional 
development have remained a strong focus for 
Gidgee this year. A pivotal element of our drive  
to become an Aboriginal employer of choice  
is to offer career paths to First Nations peoples, 
supported by grass roots training and education. 
Our recently developed cadetships for nurses  
are yet another pathway for a health career at 
Gidgee Healing.

It’s been positive to expand our training team this 
year and we now have training personnel located in 
Mount Isa and Normanton. We’ve also focussed on 
building capacity through train the trainer courses in 
a range of areas.

Supporting our people to grow in their roles is 
integral to our training model and we have now 
established a mentoring program and we continue 
to work on building cultural competency.

Gidgee is proud to share our training model with 
other Indigenous organisations to broaden the 
influence of home grown talent beyond our own 
organisation. 

During 2021, Gidgee employees completed the 
following training and professional development.

Clinical

 · Vaccine Management Training
 · Wound Care
 · Rheumatic Heart Disease

Business Administration

 · Certificate III Business Administration (Medical)
 · Communication

Workplace Health and Safety

 · First Aid
 · CPR
 · Manual handling
 · Emergency Evacuation
 · WHS Awareness

Professional

Certificate III in ATSI Primary Health

 · Certificate IV in ATSI Primary Health
 · Certificate IV in Training and Assessment
 · Certificate III in Individual Support (Aging)
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OUR CONVERSATIONS

SINCE

NOVEMBER 2020 

RADIO
INTERVIEWS

COMMUNITY
EVENTS

21 21

Our conversations and engagement with our communities are 
critical to ensuring our services are responsive to community 
needs, that we maintain strong relationship with key partners, 
and that our patients trust us and feel part  
of the Gidgee Healing community. 
Gidgee Healing connects with the community through social media, radio, video, print, 
and face-to-face conversations through our services and out in the community. 

In addition to keeping our communities up-to-date, the Communications and 
Marketing Team has worked on improving internal communications by increasing the 
regularity of messages through a variety of channels. Planning has commenced for 
the development of an intranet and it will be operational in the next financial year.

Gidgee Healing is proud to have sponsored multiple community initiatives over the 
last twelve months. Events included the Normanton Rodeo, for which we were the 
major sponsor of the ‘Beat the Blues’ street parade to raise awareness about mental 
health, as well as the Community Services Ball. 

Since November 2020: 
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COVID-19

Keeping our communities and employees updated about the evolving COVID-19 
pandemic has been our first priority over the last twelve months. In particular, the 
last six months have focussed on providing updates related to the vaccine rollout. 
Through social and traditional media and face-to-face conversations, Gidgee 
Healing shares important messages about COVID-19 and the vaccine rollout. 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND EVENTS 

Community engagement is key to our Aboriginal Community Controlled Health 
Service Model. Despite the challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the end 
of 2020 and start of 2021 has been busy for Gidgee Healing in the community 
engagement and events space. 

EVENT HIGHLIGHTS

GIDGEE HEALING AND DEADLY 
CHOICES BACK TO SCHOOL  
HEALTH CHECKS

In January 2021, Gidgee Healing’s Deadly Choices 
team was delighted to be able to deliver Back to 
School Health Checks and Family Fun Day. We were 
proud to support Deadly Choices for this in-person 
event at the Family Fun Day in Mount Isa. We also 
provided collateral, and helped prepare packs for 
our Normanton, Doomadgee and Mornington Island 
locations so the teams on the ground could roll out 
the health checks for our young people.

INTERNATIONAL LEGENDS  
OF LEAGUE 

In May 2021, Mount Isa hosted the International 
Legends of League, sponsored by the Queensland 
Government. Gidgee Healing and North West 
Hospital and Health Service teamed up to deliver 
important health promotion and education to 
attendees; including how to be COVID-19 safe; 
the importance of staying healthy like getting a flu 
vaccination, strengthening your social and emotional 
wellbeing and information about the COVID-19 
vaccine. Events like these provide invaluable 
opportunities for us to connect with our communities. 

CLOSE THE GAP 

Gidgee Healing was proud to host Close the Gap 
Day activities to raise awareness and show our 
support for health equality for all Australians. This 
year’s theme was “Leadership and Legacy Through 
Crisis: Keeping Our Mob Safe”. The Normanton 
Primary Health Clinic hosted a Close the Gap 
Morning Tea for the community. Not only was the 
morning tea a time to reflect on an important topic, 
but it was also an opportunity to connect and yarn 
with community members and other health service 
providers. 

In partnership with North West Hospital and 
Health Service Gidgee Healing also hosted the 
Close the Gap Open Day in Mount Isa. This event 
provided an opportunity for our services including 
Deadly Choices, headspace, Family Wellbeing, 
Primary Health Care, Family Health and Allied 
Health to connect with the community, the North 
West Hospital and Health Service Team and other 
community partners in attendance.

RECONCILIATION WEEK

During Reconciliation Week Gidgee Healing 
hosted multiple events across our footprint. The 
Normanton Recovery and Wellbeing Centre held a 
BBQ for staff and residents to celebrate the week. 
In Mount Isa, we hosted a Reconciliation morning 
tea in partnership with the James Cook University 
Murtupuni Centre for Rural and Remote Health. 
During this event JCU and Gidgee staff and the 
community came together to yarn about what 
Reconciliation means and how we can be ‘braver 
and move towards more impactful action’. 
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FUTURE FOCUS

Gidgee Healing has commenced work to refresh our website and develop a new 
intranet platform. The website upgrade will be focussed on providing information 
to community, whilst the new intranet will improve communication amongst our 
team. Gidgee Healing has commenced the planning and procurements phase of 
this project, with building works to commence in 2021-22 financial year.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

• Gidgee Healing Deadly Choices Back to School Family Fun Day
• Back to School Health Checks
• Ovarian Cancer Information Session
• Show Your Team Spirit Day
• Close the Gap Open Day, Mount Isa
• Close the Gap Morning tea, Normanton
• ABC Live Broadcast at the Pioneer Clinic
• Family & Community Engagement Day
• Senior Games Fun Day
• International Legends of League
• Reconciliation Week Morning tea
• Normanton Rodeo and Street Parade
• Good Shepherd Business Breakfast
• Outback Allied Health Forum
• Community Services Ball
•  “Yarn with Us” Family Health Community Engagement Stall  

in Doomadgee and Mornington Island
• ANZAC Day Service Mount Isa
• Women’s Health Week, Normanton
• 2020 NAIDOC Week March Doomadgee
• Doomadgee Health Expo
• Gidgee Healing, Deadly Choices Doomadgee Fishing Competition
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OUR PARTNERS  
AND STAKEHOLDERS
We work in collaborative relationships with a range of stakeholder groups to 
deliver the best possible culturally appropriate health care for the Indigenous 
communities in our region. We are proud to work alongside:

 · Local Aboriginal Health Councils
 · Traditional Owner groups
 · Griffith University- Menzies Health 

Institute Queensland
 · Queensland Indigenous Family Legal 

Services
 · headspace
 · Local Government
 · Injilinji

 · Visiting clinicians
 · Young People Ahead (YPA)
 · Queensland Department of Education
 · Local, state, and federal government 

organisations
 · JCU Murtupuni Centre for Rural and 

Remote Health 
 · Other non-government organisations 

aligned to our values

OUR FUNDING
Our work is made possible through funding from various sources and we 
gratefully acknowledge support from:

 · Australian Government  
Department of Health

 · Institute for Urban Indigenous Health
 · Australian Government  

Department of Social Services
 · CheckUP Australia
 · Western Queensland  

Primary Health Network
 · Health Workforce Queensland

 · National Indigenous Australians 
Agency

 · Queensland Government –  
Queensland Health

 · Queensland Government – 
Department of Children, Youth  
Justice and Multicultural Affairs

 · Queensland Government – 
Department of Education
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NORMANTON

KEY POINTS 
• Moving into aged care services
• Dedicated COVID-19 screening to manage tourist movement in and 

around First Nation Communities
• Youth and Men’s Business camps focussed on suicide prevention
• Data sharing between primary health care providers and the Normanton 

Recovery and Community Wellbeing Service to ensure latest information

Normanton is home to a resilient community of First Nations people. The area 
is predominantly a pastoralist region and nearby Delta Downs is the largest 
station in Queensland to be 100% owned and operated by the Traditional 
Owners. The local community has an extremely close connection to country 
and tradition, actively using bush foods and traditional medicine in their daily 
lives. Gidgee Healing respects and supports First Nation People to combine 
traditional and contemporary methods of managing their health. 

Widely regarded as the hub of the Gulf, Normanton offers a range of services 
and provides a base for communities across the Gulf Country. Although there 
is often a high volume of tourist traffic going through the township on the way 
to explore the beautiful saltwater country, Normanton remains a tight-knit 
community with strong social connections. 
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HIGHLIGHTS

AGED CARE

Taking on the Kukatja Place aged care facility in Normanton has been a huge 
highlight for Gidgee this year. This has meant we can integrate the care of 
our elders with primary and allied health care for a holistic, whole of life 
approach, delivered the Gidgee Way. Our residents are cared for by a large 
contingent of First Nations people who come from the local community, 
giving them the comfort and safety of being around people who know and 
understand them and their culture.

DEDICATED COVID-19 SCREENING CENTRE

Gulf Country is a popular place to visit and has become even more so this 
year with restrictions on interstate and international travel. The high volume 
of tourist traffic through the township puts our vulnerable communities at 
a higher risk of being infiltrated by the COVID-19 virus, which would have 
disastrous results. Gidgee Healing operated a dedicated COVID-19 screening 
program in Normanton throughout the year to keep our communities safe and 
protected. We also run a fever clinic to control potential contagious viruses.

VACCINATION HUB

The Normanton flu clinic administered a record number of vaccinations 
this year — more than any other Gidgee Healing clinic. This has also led 
to community members engaging in open conversation around getting 
vaccinated, which we have welcomed. 

While it was not driven by Gidgee, we were pleased to see the rollout of 
COVID19 vaccines through the community health centre. We are gratified, 
not only with the willingness of First Nations people to protect themselves 
and their families, but also with the support of non-Indigenous folk to keep 
preventable illness out of our communities.

OUTREACH AT DELTA DOWNS

Despite the restrictions imposed to protect our communities from COVID-19, 
Gidgee Healing’s outreach work at Delta Downs station featured strongly 
again this year. Our regular clinics at Delta Downs include representatives 
from our Family Wellbeing and Deadly Choices programs, as well as the 
primary health care team from our Normanton clinic who perform health 
checks, STI testing, and routine GP clinic appointments. We also worked with 
Bynoe to conduct youth camps at the station with a focus on mental health 
and suicide prevention through connection to the land and elders. This year 
we focussed on the 15-25 year old age group out on the station, capturing 
more new people into the health check cycle.
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SCHOOL HEALTH CHECKS

Gidgee Healing’s linkages with schools remain strong, with continuing support from 
parents and teachers. Our school health checks have maintained an average 60-70% 
attendance and focus on skin health, rheumatic heart disease, and other chronic disease 
referrals. During the year 131 preventative health checks were conducted, resulting in 
referrals to various specialists and allied health professionals for early intervention.

NORMANTON RECOVERY AND COMMUNITY  

WELLBEING SERVICE

The journey to recovery is different for everyone and we offer a range of options  
for people ready to make a change. During the year we ran five camps on country  
at various sites. Dedicated to men’s business, the camps gave our inpatient 
residents the opportunity to yarn around a fire and do some healing together.

In partnership with our friends at Bynoe, we’ve been able to help residents build 
their skills base through a range of training and education opportunities. Having 
qualifications for machinery operation and gaining vocational skills builds capacity 
and opens up a world of employment opportunities as patients transition back into 
community.

A huge win for the service this year has been establishing a data link between the 
recovery centre and primary health care providers. Having the latest patient information 
on hand is imperative for providing the most appropriate treatment to residents.

CONSISTENT STAFFING

More than 90% of our Normanton team lives locally, which means that we can 
provide consistency in our medical team. Having a stable, long term team who knows 
our patients in community builds a level of trust. We have a strong contingent of 
Aboriginal Health Workers, and people feel comfortable to come into the clinic and 
talk to someone familiar, who understands their culture without having to re-tell their 
story multiple times. This has been a benefit in Normanton for some time and remains 
a feature of our service offering here. 

COLLABORATION

As the pandemic has forced us to become more resilient Gidgee has leveraged 
our strong relationships, collaborating even more closely internally and externally. 
We have strengthened links with partner services, working with organisations 
like Bynoe, and Save the Children to co-design health service programs. At the 
time of writing, these programs are still being developed and will reach fruition 
next financial year. 

Internally, our teams across all service delivery areas have become even more closely 
connected to keep each other up to date about patient outcomes. Our daily huddles 
mean all teams have the latest information and patient can be provided the most 
appropriate care.

It’s also been rewarding to bring together all Gidgee service areas to plan and 
coordinate activities like program delivery, recruitment drives, health promotions  
and community events. 
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CHALLENGES

The Normanton community has carried a heavy weight of Sorry Business 
this year. The causes are varied and complex. Chronic disease is a massive 
burden, and we are working with community to develop culturally 
appropriate early interventions. The mental health of our young people 
is also an area of concern. Indigenous youth are presenting with mental 
health issues that require therapeutic services that are not available in 
Normanton for this demographic. More broadly, there is a need for mental 
health services for all age groups. This challenges Gidgee’s commitment to 
holistic care, and the community who feel the burden of this insufficiency. 
We are working with local services and organisations at all levels of 
intervention to support closing this service gap.

THE FUTURE FOR NORMANTON 

One of our biggest goals for next year is broadening our community 
consultation and getting our cultural advisory group up and running. 
We are excited to be working with community to advise us about how  
we can improve the cultural safety of our health care services. The groups 
will be formed within each of our Gulf communities and will contain a 
cross section from a range of clan groups, ages, and gender.

Looking ahead, we are keen to build more opportunities to join forces 
with others — we are much stronger when working together. Community 
partnership is a key pillar of being an Aboriginal Community Controlled 
Health Organisation, and we are committed to providing a governance 
system that enables community co-design, and promotes accountability 
and transparency for our community members. We look forward to 
working cohesively with community for greater engagement and co-
design of tailored delivery of programs such as Deadly Choices. 
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DOOMADGEE
KEY POINTS 
• Adopting aged care services
• Introducing child and maternal health 
• Tackling rheumatic heart disease
• Yapatjarrathati — First Nations’ lens on FASD 

The Aboriginal community of Doomadgee is closely connected and 
passionate about their land and traditional culture. Traditional food and 
medicines feature strongly in the daily life of the Doomadgee community 
and Elders are eager to pass on the history and knowledge of their heritage 
to younger generations.

Like other Gulf communities, Doomadgee has been grappling with an 
increase in youth suicide over the last 12 months, which has left the 
community reeling.

30



HIGHLIGHTS

AGED CARE

We were thrilled to add aged care to our portfolio of services in the Gulf this year, 
enabling us to provide our signature wrap-around care throughout the entire lives 
of our patients. Ngooderi House in Doomadgee offers residents a culturally safe 
facility where they receive tailored care that links in with other Gidgee services. 
Many of the care workers at Ngooderi are locals who know residents and their 
families and understand their cultural heritage and traditions.

CHILD AND MATERNAL HEALTH NURSE IN COMMUNITY

Having shared the delivery of child health services with the Royal Flying Doctor 
Service for four years, Gidgee Healing has become the sole provider of child health 
services in Doomadgee. This came about towards the end of the financial year, 
and we are thrilled to have the opportunity to do things differently. We are looking 
forward to co-designing the service with community, starting from the ground 
up. The consultation process with the local shire and health council, soon-to-be-
established reference group, and the broader community will start in earnest next 
financial year. We plan to kick things off by participating in a ‘Welcome Bubs  
to Country’ event organised by Save the Children, planned for NAIDOC week.  
We are looking forward to working together with the people of Doomadgee to 
take local knowledge and create tailored care for mums and bubs here. Gidgee 
Healing’s Family Health team is helping with the transition from our good friends at 
Royal Flying Doctor Service who were previously providing these services and have 
provided a warm handover. 

RHEUMATIC HEART DISEASE (RHD)

We have continued our critical RHD screening program in Doomadgee, which 
informs the need for outreach clinics, follow up treatment and management,  
and health education for children, parents and families. We are very excited to  
be co-designing a program with Doomadgee and other First Nations communities 
to tackle this disease through an education and evaluation framework based on 
a Dreamtime story. It is an honour to be trusted to work with community to find 
ways to tackle this devastating illness.

Getting on top of this disease in our communities continues to be a challenge. 
Unfortunately, this year there has been a 2.8% increase in the prevalence of 
RHD in community. One in four people who contract RHD require a surgical 
intervention, which is devastating for our little ones and their families. We are 
deeply troubled that this preventable illness is increasing in our communities. 
However, what we see as a highlight is the opportunity to work with community 
to create a culturally appropriate approach that could, with time, ultimately 
eradicate the disease from the lower Gulf. 
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FOETAL ALCOHOL SPECTRUM DISORDER (FASD)

We are delighted to have started conversations in Doomadgee about our ground-
breaking approach to assessing child neurodevelopment. Yapatjarrathati (‘to get 
well’) has been co-created with our Gulf communities. It is a culturally appropriate 
tiered process that uses a framework based on a First Nations world view to assess 
neurodevelopmental factors, with a strong focus on identifying and treating FASD. 
This unique approach has been developed in partnership with Griffith University’s 
Menzies Institute and has been piloted in Mount Isa. We are humbled that we have 
earned enough trust from the people of Doomadgee to be open to Yapatjarrathati 
and how it could help the community.

BE WELL LEARN WELL

The unique integration of health and education through the Be Well Learn Well 
Program continues to be a highlight in Doomadgee. Providing allied health services 
directly into schools, outside of a clinical setting, is leading-edge and central to 
achieving health outcomes. Services are delivered in one-on-one and group based 
interventions and therapies over four day blocks, eight times per year. The program 
integrates education and health and responds holistically and responsively to the 
risk factors influencing child development and schooling outcomes.

CHALLENGES

The global pandemic continues to be a challenge, particularly in relation to 
resourcing. Our fly-in-fly-out staff are often unavailable due to being needed  
on the east coast and being locked down in hotspots. We have recently lost  
our permanent GP, and there is a national shortage of GP locums who are  
often sourced internationally. 

Gidgee respects and honours the traditions of Sorry Business by tailoring our 
service delivery to adhere to community protocols. In Doomadgee, all service 
providers close for half a day out of respect for the families who are grieving.  
While this can affect health service delivery, Gidgee has put in place practices  
that support continuity of care while observing and respecting traditional practices. 

We believe there is a gap in service delivery around the provision of services that 
support mental health and wellbeing. We are collaborating with our health partners 
in the community to explore how we might work together to close this gap.
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THE FUTURE FOR DOOMADGEE

Continuing to integrate cultural awareness and safety into all that we do remains 
at the top of our priorities. Getting our cultural advisory group in place will be 
key to understanding how we can better tailor our services to the needs of the 
Doomadgee community and ensure our patients feel safe when accessing our care.

We have adapted well to the ‘new normal’ of telehealth, with nurse practitioners 
now accomplished in conducting these appointments. We are working towards 
providing GP telehealth appoints to offer a more fulsome suite of virtual services.
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MORNINGTON ISLAND

KEY POINTS 
• Providing aged care services to Mornington Island 
• Child and maternal health – the Gidgee Way
• Dreamtime stories for better health outcomes

The community of Mornington Island is passionate about their health and 
is highly engaged in having input to the services available to support their 
wellbeing. They are heavily involved with shaping health care services and 
keen to collaborate in the delivery of care. 

Traditional culture is rich and strong here and is firmly ingrained in everyday 
life, with regular activities run in school and through the arts centre. Mornington 
Island is a fusion of cultures. From the Lardil people – the traditional custodians 
– to the Yangkaal and Kaiadilt people, the Gangalidda people and the many 
visitors and workers, Mornington Island is a diverse community.
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HIGHLIGHTS

AGED CARE

The Kuba Natha aged care facility has been operated by Gidgee Healing from January 
2021. We are honoured to be caring for our Elders in this community and across the 
Gulf, providing residents a culturally safe and fully integrated approach to service 
delivery. This includes a dedicated pharmacist who works with primary health care 
teams to structure medication regimes for residents. Kuba Natha provides a culturally 
safe environment, with people from the local community giving them the comfort and 
safety of being around people who know and understand them and their culture.

CHILD AND MATERNAL HEALTH

Gidgee Healing has moved from sharing the child health portfolio with the Royal 
Flying Doctor Service to being the sole provider of child health services in Mornington 
Island. We feel privileged to be in this space and are mindful of the importance of 
the responsibility that comes with it. This is an incredible opportunity to co-design 
the service with community, working with the local shire council, health council and 
community reference group. 

The consultation process will start in earnest in July 2021 and will unofficially 
commence with a ‘Welcome Bubs to Country’ event organised by Save the Children, 
planned for NAIDOC week. We are looking forward to working together with the 
people of Mornington Island who will bring local knowledge to help us create tailored 
care for mums and bubs here. Gidgee Healing’s Family Health team is helping with 
the transition from our good friends at the Royal Flying Doctor Service who were 
previously providing these services and have provided a warm handover. 

RHEUMATIC HEART DISEASE (RHD)

RHD screening has continued on Mornington Island, providing valuable information 
about the need for outreach clinics, follow up treatment and management, and health 
education for children, parents and families. We are very excited to be co-designing 
a program with First Nations communities across the lower Gulf to tackle Acute 
Rheumatic Fever (ARF) and RHD through an education and evaluation framework 
based on a Dreamtime story. It is an honour to be trusted to work with community  
to find ways to tackle this devastating illness.

It is very troubling that there has been a 2.8% increase in the prevalence of RHD in 
our communities. The challenge to conquer this disease continues to test us, and 
sadly, one in four people who contract RHD requires a surgical intervention, which is 
devastating for our little ones and their families. 

What we consider a highlight is the opportunity to work with community to create  
a culturally appropriate approach that could, with time, ultimately eradicate the 
disease from the lower Gulf. 
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FOETAL ALCOHOL SPECTRUM DISORDER (FASD)

We are grateful to be talking with the Mornington community about implementing 
our ground-breaking approach to assessing child neurodevelopment. Yapatjarrathati 
(‘to get well’). It has been co-created with our Gulf communities, but is yet to be fully 
implemented with them, so far having been trialled in Mount Isa. It is a culturally 
appropriate tiered process that uses a framework based on a First Nations world 
view to assess neurodevelopmental factors, with a strong focus on identifying and 
treating FASD. This unique approach has been developed in partnership with Griffith 
University’s Menzies Institute and has been piloted in Mount Isa. We are humbled 
to be having these early conversations with the people of Mornington Island about 
introducing Yapatjarrathati and how it could help people here. 

BE WELL LEARN WELL

Integrating health and education is making a huge difference to the wellbeing and 
learning of our young ones in Mornington. The leading edge Be Well Learn Well 
Program helps us deliver allied health services directly into schools, outside of a 
clinical setting, promoting a safe, supportive and productive learning environment 
that leads to better learning, development and health outcomes. The team works 
one-on-one with children and in group based interventions and therapies over four 
day blocks, eight timers per year. The program integrates education and health 
professionals to respond holistically and responsively to the risk factors influencing 
child development and schooling outcomes.

CHALLENGES

COVID-19 impacts us in many ways. The threat of the virus getting into our 
communities looms constantly and the pressure on resourcing is also significant. We 
have a heavy reliance on locums and fly-in-fly-out staff, who are often unavailable 
due to being needed on the east coast or unable to travel because of border restrictions 
and biosecurity protocols. Regardless of the effect on our services, we will continue 
to take a conservative approach to people coming into our communities, to keep our 
people safe.

As an Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation, we are unwavering in 
our commitment to respectfully observe local community protocols. This means that 
during times of Sorry Business our services are impacted as we respect traditions. 
Pausing our services can be challenging for the local health system, however, this is 
part of supporting our community and recognising the significance of these times. 

We see a need for increased mental health services on Mornington Island. Gidgee 
Healing is working with local services and organisations at all levels of intervention 
to support closing this service gap. Mental health services for youth are particularly 
scarce in more remote regions, which challenges us to achieve our vision of providing 
a holistic health care model.
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THE FUTURE FOR MORNINGTON ISLAND 

The coming months will see us working closely with the Mornington Island 
community to start rolling out ARF and RHD packages. Conversations 
about Yapatjarrathati will also be a priority and it will be rewarding to 
 take this framework back into the communities that helped design it. 

One of our biggest goals for next year is broadening our community 
consultation and getting our cultural advisory group up and running.  
We are excited to be working with community to advise us about how  
we can improve the cultural safety of our health care services. The groups 
will be formed within each of our Gulf communities and will contain  
a cross section from a range of clan groups, ages, and gender.

Looking ahead, we are keen to build more opportunities to work together 
with our partners and stakeholders. Collaboration is at the very heart 
of being an Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation and 
we look forward to working cohesively with community for greater 
engagement and co-design of tailored delivery of programs.

37



MOUNT ISA

KEY POINTS 
• Continuity of service during a global pandemic
• Ground-breaking child and maternal health programs
• Mandatory RHD training for staff
• Getting back to basics on Community Controlled services
• Future return to Burke Street

Sometimes referred to as the ‘oasis of the outback’, Mount Isa stands 
on Kalkadoon Country — the origin of some of the most fierce and 
organised resistance to settlement and colonisation. The Kalkadoon 
people have a long history of being strong, resilient and powerful — 
qualities we see in this mob every day.

The region is known for its rich mineral deposits. The resultant mining 
activity and local agriculture attracts people from all walks of life — 
from other traditional nation groups and a range of international origins. 
Mount Isa is a diverse multicultural melting pot of culture and industry.

HIGHLIGHTS

Gidgee Healing continues to be well recognised throughout the Mount 
Isa region. We are known for having friendly, helpful staff, and highly 
regarded doctors and nurses, and we’re proud of our brand.

38



CONTINUING SERVICE DURING A PANDEMIC

Our most significant achievement during the 2021 financial year has been to 
continue providing services throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. The situation 
has put enormous pressure on the health system across the country, making 
supply of health care personnel challenging due to stretched availability and 
travel restrictions. Gidgee’s medical team in Mount Isa has been indispensable 
in enabling continuity of service to our Gulf communities. Our allied health team 
is based in Mount Isa, and as a result of our stringent internal processes and the 
diligence of our team in their practice of good health and hygiene, our health 
professionals have been able to continue travelling to our regional and remote 
communities. 

Providing integrated care to seniors has remained a focus this year and the Allied 
Health and Deadly Choices programs have consistently seen a high level of 
participation, despite restrictions on gathering. In the face of a global pandemic 
and the associated limitations, holding events has been even more of a highlight 
than usual this year. The Deadly Choices and Allied Health events — including 
fishing competitions, men’s group gatherings, and Seniors’ Games — have all 
helped to keep people connected with community in a time of isolation. 

CHILD AND MATERNAL HEALTH

We were delighted to continue working with Griffith University on the 
ground-breaking Yapatjarrathati (‘to get well’) framework for assessing child 
neurodevelopment, specifically relating to Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder 
(FASD). This Australian first is a culturally appropriate tiered process that uses a 
Dreamtime story to assess neurodevelopmental factors based on a First Nations 
world view. The huge advantage of this approach is the ability to assess and treat 
locally. The mainstream approach has prolonged wait times, is an intense and 
intimidating process, and is only performed in major centres over multiple days. 

Yapatjarrathati has received grant funding from the National Health and Medical 
Research Council (NHMRC) to extend its reach and work alongside North West 
Hospital, Sunshine Coast Hospital and Gold Coast Hospital to validate the 
pathway, with Gidgee as the flagship for the program. This will be an enormous 
benefit and is incredibly significant. Through the work of our Dr Marjad Page, 
Gidgee is challenging the way our health system works. 

The success of Yapatjarrathati has inspired us to develop another community 
co-designed approach for assessment and practice — this time in addressing 
Rheumatic Heart Disease (RHD) and Acute Rheumatic Fever (ARF), which 
disproportionately affect our communities. From the creation of another 
Dreamtime story by Dr Page, Gidgee has built packages of information and 
materials that guide best practice for community and practitioners. Similarly to 
its FASD counterpart, the Dreamtime story explains to patients and family in a 
culturally sensitive way what RHD is, its symptoms, treatment and prevention. 
The clinical package guides clinicians on the required care plans to manage the 
disease — e.g. dental referrals, echocardiograms, bicillin injections, etc.

Our Healthy Skin program has been enormously successful this year. The team 
works with Mount Isa schools and visits families in their homes to educate and 
provide treatments for nits, scabies, and ringworm. This program focusses on 
getting out into community, to support and educate people on the importance  
of healthy skin and its links to RHD and health. 
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STUDENT PLACEMENTS

It’s been positive to see the continuation of student placements in our clinics and 
allied health services. During the year we had 34 medical students complete 
placements with us — 27 in Mount Isa and seven in Normanton. Placement programs 
are an essential element of attracting health professionals to remote and rural 
locations. Data from the Murtupuni Centre for Remote and Rural Health indicates 
that a significant proportion of those who have undertaken work placement in remote 
communities go on to practice in similar locations throughout their career — this is 
particularly true for nurses. So, we are pleased that in the midst of a pandemic, there 
are still opportunities for students to experience the unique way of life and work in 
our communities.

SYSTEMIC CHANGE

With Rheumatic Heart Disease (RHD) disproportionately affecting Aboriginal 
communities, Gidgee Healing made sure all our health professionals completed 
mandatory training this year. While the long term outcomes of the training in terms 
of benefits for our patients will emerge over time, this preventative approach will 
ultimately have significant impacts. 

Our First Nations People have a higher than average incidence of respiratory diseases 
like asthma. Gidgee Healing pharmacists have been instrumental in helping people in 
the Mount Isa community fulfil their asthma treatment plans this year. The pharmacy 
team has delivered an asthma education package to other clinical staff and will also 
roll out a similar session for community.

During the year, the Mount Isa team concentrated on reframing systems and practices 
to be more driven by patient-centred holistic care. As an ACCHO, this has always 
been at the heart of what we do, however, it is an ongoing journey to find ways 
to deliver on this vision in a health system that is pervasively siloed and built on a 
clinical approach to care. This overarching intent has seen all our disciplines working 
together more collaboratively and enabled us to formally implement practices such as 
medications reviews and case conferencing to provide better integrated care.

The work we did in 2019-20 to redesign our clinical governance framework has 
continued this year and has been well received by staff. Our approach has broadened 
responsibility for inputs to the framework, moving away from a top-down approach 
and giving everyone an opportunity to contribute. Our entire health workforce 
regardless of discipline or role — from receptionists to nurses, GPs and allied health 
workers — has input to our governance framework.

We are now well into the process of establishing a cultural advisory group for Mount 
Isa, and all the communities in which we serve. The groups will provide cultural 
advice to ensure our practices are culturally and clinically safe and ensure each 
community is heard and involved in the way we are shaping and providing care.  
The terms of reference have been set, and we are looking forward to establishing  
the committees early in the next financial year. This process is integral to our 
community controlled mandate and will drive our commitment to ensuring our 
primary health care services are appropriately tailored for each community. 
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THE FUTURE FOR GIDGEE IN MOUNT ISA

Moving forward, our priority continues to be strengthening services that 
are clinically and culturally safe, and that will last into the future. We remain 
true to our vision of providing holistic, integrated care and have made 
good headway towards a more streamlined approach, which we continue 
to evolve. In our Mount Isa clinics, we have always had a strong focus on 
physical health, and we are now moving towards a care model that values 
social and emotional wellbeing equally with physical aspects, and smoothly 
integrates all elements of services. This is our continuing focus for the future. 

We still have work to do to get our staffing and processes right so the 
people of Mount Isa can make appointments and access health professionals 
in a timely manner. Over the coming months, we will continue to improve our 
operational systems to be simpler and more efficient.

We are excited at the opportunity to purchase the old clinic property 
at Burke Street — the location of Gidgee’s original home in Mount Isa. 
Negotiations are ongoing and we are hopeful that we will be able to 
redevelop the site to return to our roots. 

While there are always opportunities to improve, we are proud that we are 
never content to accept what is — we are always looking for ways to be 
better. We are looking forward to continuing to improve our health services 
to the people of Mount Isa.
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HEALTH SERVICES
PRIMARY HEALTH CARE

Gidgee Healing’s Primary Health Services are predominantly funded by the 
Department of Health and Queensland Health. We provide a range of culturally 
appropriate primary health care services to support the health and wellbeing  
of our patients and their families in Mount Isa, Normanton, Doomadgee and 
Mornington Island. Our team includes Aboriginal health workers, General 
Practitioners, registered nurses, midwives, allied health professionals, visiting 
medical specialists and support workers. 

Our services include:

 · Health Checks 
 · Wound care and chronic wound  

care management
 · Chronic Disease Management
 · Healthy lifestyle promotion and 

education 
 · Maternal and Child Health 
 · Pharmacy services

 · Women’s Health 
 · Visiting Medical Specialists 
 · Men’s Health 
 · Home Visits 
 · Sexual Health 
 · Transport to and from appointments 
 · Vaccinations and immunisations

To cater to differing needs, Gidgee offers consultations by appointment and ‘walk-ins’. 
The transport service is vital to providing primary health care, ensuring that patients 
can get to their scheduled appointments and home again safely.

The effects of COVID-19 have challenged us to consider how we can deliver 
health services differently and provided opportunities to explore options for virtual 
appointments like telehealth. We have continued to grow this capability to help 
manage the delivery of health services in regional and remote communities. 
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NUMBER  OF HEALTH CHECKS
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FLU VACCINES DELIVERED ACROSS THE FOOTPRINT: 

TOTAL 
VACCINES

TOTAL VACCINE 
50+ YRS

2019-20 177 32

2020-21 451 244

TELEHEALTH DATA

LOCATION TELEHEALTH SERVICE

Mount Isa 1619

Doomadgee 108

Mornington Island 1195

Normanton 556

Total 3478
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CHRONIC DISEASE MANAGEMENT

Managing chronic disease is a crucial part of Gidgee Healing’s primary health 
care service. Significant work has been done to strengthen the connection 
between GP, pharmacy and allied health to integrate management of chronic 
diseases. We have stepped up our multidisciplinary collaboration on case 
conferencing, medication reviews and referrals to provide chronic disease 
patients across clinics, allied health, aged care facilities and home visits 
seamless wrap-around care. 

CHRONIC DISEASE ACROSS OUR COMUNITIES

MOUNT ISA FIRST NATIONS PATIENTS

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Top 6 Chronic Disease

1. Hypertension 629 649 721

2. Hyperlipidaemia 643 636 671

3. Diabetes 576 597 636

4. Mental Health 406 429 423

5. Chronic Kidney Disease 279 410 426

6. Renal Impairment 279 410 429

No. of patients with 2+ chronic diseases 708 777 841

Number of patients taking 5+ medications 899 839 995

No. of patients 8 + medication 470 461 536

No. of patients current Care Plans 388 1495 406 

NORMANTON FIRST NATIONS PATIENTS

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Top 6 Chronic Disease

1. Hypertension 207 203 210

2. Hyperlipidaemia 182 199 202

3. Diabetes 172 178 188

4. Mental Health 91 99 102

5. Respiratory 107 81 110

6. Renal Impairment 73 81 86

No. of patients 2 + chronic diseases 210 216 225

No. of patients taking 5+ medications 204 225 243

No. of patients taking 8+ medication 106 124 134

No. of patients on care plans 151 391 61
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DOOMADGEE FIRST NATIONS PATIENTS

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Top 6 Chronic Disease

1. Diabetes 149 161 189

2. Hypertension 117 124 136

3. Renal Impairment 75 117 121

4. Chronic Kidney Disease 75 117 121

5. Hyperlipidaemia 76 88 111

6. Mental Health 40 37 61

No. patients with 2+ chronic diseases 143 168 191

No. patients taking 5+ medication 174 205 305

No. patients taking 8+ medication 88 107 155

No. patients on care plans 112 249 122

MORNINGTON ISLAND FIRST NATIONS PATIENTS

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Top 6 Chronic Disease

1. Renal Impairment 99 137 132

2. Chronic Kidney Disease 98 136 131

3. Diabetes 140 135 135

4. Hypertension 124 131 129

5. Hyperlipidaemia 84 87 88

6. Mental Health 29 40 34

No. patients with 2+ chronic diseases 149 168 168

No. patients 5+ medications 136 129 134

No. patient 8+ medications 84 87 97

No. patients on care plans 84 242 42
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COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic remains a global threat. Throughout the last 
12 months Gidgee has remained agile and responsive to the changing 
restrictions, ensuring we keep our communities safe. We are relieved and 
grateful that North-west and Lower Gulf communities have remained 
COVID-19 free. We continue to work collaboratively with hospital and health 
services, local councils, health councils, and other partner organisations in 
response to the pandemic, and through the rollout of the COVID-19 vaccine. 

Our Mount Isa Primary Health Care team has been part of the COVID-19 
vaccine roll out, providing vaccines to community members. This has required 
the collective effort of clinical and non-clinical staff to ensure safe, efficient 
delivery of vaccines that is in line with State and Federal requirements. 

ENHANCED SYPHILIS RESPONSE

The recently established Enhanced Syphilis Response Program tackles infectious 
syphilis in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander populations in the North West and 
Lower Gulf. Working with the Mount Isa Sexual Health Clinic, we aim to deliver a 
long-term response to syphilis and other sexually transmitted infections and blood 
borne viruses, with the goal of reducing rates to a low level.

With an objective of testing 70% of the target population of 14-35 year olds twice 
a year, the program also provides treatment, follow-up care, contact tracing, and 
education. We manage appointments, maintain a register for treatment history and 
collect and record data for monitoring. Gidgee is working with partner organisations 
like Young People Ahead, Churches of Christ, and the Mona Corporation. 

Most of the targeted age group, 938 clients attend Gidgee Healing for Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander health checks, and of these, 715 clients were referred for STI 
checks. While happy to complete a health check, many clients prefer to have their STI 
check at the Mount Isa Sexual Health Clinic. Clients fear that they will run into family 
members whilst attending the Gidgee Healing clinic for an STI check, causing shame 
and embarrassment. This is not a new challenge in Mount Isa or remote Communities.

VACCINES
DELIVERED 

FIRST NATIONS NON FIRST NATIONS
124 91
215
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NUKAL MURRA

Nukal Murra is an integrated team care service to support Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander peoples with complex chronic disease better manage their conditions through 
access to one-on-one assistance from a care coordinator who manages care plans 
with health service providers. Nukal Murra is funded by the Western Queensland 
Primary Health network.

COVID-19 restrictions continued to affect our ability to provide a face-to-face service 
with our Nukal Murra clients. However, we have facilitated a range of virtual options 
for our clients as needed, to ensure patients stay connected with essential health 
services.

Services outside of Gidgee Healing can refer patients to Nukal Murra to access 
support. The program is delivered in Mount Isa, Burketown, Cloncurry, Dajarra,  
Julia Creek and Leichardt and provides the following support and service to clients:

 · Care coordination
 · Supplementary services
 · Clinical services access
 · Allied health and specialist services

Of 358 total referrals to Nukal Murra, 254 came from Gidgee 
Healing for supports and services such as: 
 · Blood sugar monitors
 · Transport 
 · Spectacles
 · Breathing assistance equipment
 · Footwear
 · Mobility aids
 · Dose aids
 · Medical aids

FUTURE FOCUS

The last twelve months have been a period of review in the primary health 
care space. Gidgee Healing strives for continual quality improvement to 
ensure that patients receive the best possible care that is safe and culturally 
appropriate. Through this review Gidgee Healing has increased our efforts 
to practise a health care model that integrates allied health, pharmacy, 
Deadly Choices, Nukal Murra and family health as part of primary health. 
This integration simplifies and accelerates referrals to other services and 
ensures patients accessing multiple services have consistent care. 

The 2020 closure of the Burke Street Clinic has affected our services and 
the Mount Isa community. We have been working hard to return to Burke 
Street and plan to re-open the Burke Street Clinic late in 2021. 
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FAMILY HEALTH

The Family Health portfolio delivers a range of services that support families 
throughout a child’s development journey. We provide information and support 
around early intervention and treatment of chronic disease, developmental and 
learning disabilities, and behavioural and mental health issues.

CONNECTED BEGINNINGS 

Connected Beginnings is an initiative supporting the integration of early 
childhood, maternal and child health, and family support services within school 
settings in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities. It focusses on kids 
being healthy and well-prepared for school. In 2020-21 the focus has been on 
the Doomadgee community, the program aims to improve health outcomes and 
support kids to achieve developmental milestones, so they are ready to start 
school, and learn and thrive.

The program is run collaboratively by Gidgee’s Family Health team, Save the Children, 
Royal Flying Doctor Service and other agencies in Doomadgee. Together they deliver 
targeted and coordinated antenatal, postnatal and early childhood services for First 
Nations families with kids under five years, on or adjacent to school grounds.

The program provides:

 · Antenatal care 
 · Health promotion
 · Postnatal Care 
 · Multidisciplinary allied health team 
 · Child Health 

 · Family wellbeing team support
 · Child and adult immunisation
 · Referral to allied health and support 
 · Comprehensive health assessments
 · Transition to school support

NUMBER OF CHILDREN VACCINATED

LOCATION VACCINATIONS

Normanton 168

Mount Isa 266

Doomadgee 15

Mornington Island 16

TOTAL 465
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HEALTHY SKIN — INDIGENOUS INFECTION, PREVENTION 

AND CONTROL PROGRAM

Funded by Queensland Health and delivered by Gidgee, the Healthy Skin Project 
provides community based prevention, early detection and treatment of pathogens 
causing skin infections across the Gidgee Healing footprint. It provides support, 
education and resources within schools, community organisations and within the 
clinic. The program has been enormously successful this year, working with schools, 
in conjunction with home visits with families to educate and provide treatments  
for nits, scabies, and ringworm. This program aims at getting out into community,  
to support and educate people on the importance of health skin and its links to RHD 
and health. 

The program’s primary goals are to:
 · Increase access to opportunistic screening for vulnerable client groups, including 

contact tracing and providing support and education for clients and families 
requiring ongoing treatments and follow-up.

 · Improve the prevention, education and early detection of skin infections by 
developing community relevant information and local education strategies aimed  
at healthy hygiene in the home, school and community settings. 

 · Improve the responsiveness of the health system by providing a range of 
educational and training activities to patients, families and the health workforce  
in rural and remote settings with limited access to skin infection.

 · Reduce the current burden of disease associated with skin related infections 
experienced by Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people.

HEALTHY SKIN CHECKS 

SCHOOLS CHILDREN SCREENED
HOME VISITS & SKIN 

CARE EDUCATION

Townview State School 343 99

Central State School 190 56

Happy Valley State School 129 18

Ngukuthati 39 14

Sunset State School 18 9

Special School 26 8

Arthur Peterson Centre 30 14

Barkley State School 22 6

Brilla Brilla 22 22

Community 45

864 246
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CHILD AND FAMILY HEALTH 

This initiative supports families in our communities by providing preventative, early 
intervention and clinical child and family health services that can be flexibly delivered 
through primary health care clinics, outreach clinics, schools, home visits and 
community events. 

Having shared the delivery of child health services with the Royal Flying Doctor 
Service since we started working with Gulf communities, we are pleased to now  
be the sole provider of child health services in Doomadgee and Mornington Island, 
with a dedicated child and maternal health nurse in these communities. Our child  
and family health services include:

 · Well Child Health Checks
 · Positive parenting and health 

education
 · Immunisations
 · Pepi-Pod program

 · Nutrition assessment
 · Welcome to Country program
 · School readiness program
 · Care coordination and referrals
 · Ear Health

FOETAL ALCOHOL SPECTRUM DISORDER (FASD) 

We have continued working with Griffith University on the ground-breaking 
Yapatjarrathati framework for assessing and treating Foetal Alcohol Spectrum 
Disorder (FASD). Funded by the Department of Health, this co-created 
program delivers culturally appropriate, flexible solutions to assessing child 
neurodevelopment. Aboriginal Health Practitioners perform health checks using 
the co-designed tiered assessment tool to identify and manage children who are 
struggling. The benefit of this approach is the ability to assess and treat locally, 
instead of the mainstream approach which has prolonged wait times, is an intense 
and intimidating process, and only performed in major centres over multiple days. 

Yapatjarrathati has received grant funding from the National Health and Medical 
Research Council (NHMRC) to extend its reach and work alongside Queensland 
health services to validate the pathway with Gidgee.

child
health 
checks
 

which include assessments for neurodevelopment concerns. 

196
children on 1 of 5  
support pathways122

children diagnosed with FASD.
 

10

children identified with 
neurodevelopmental concerns, 

including autism and ADHD.

101
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RHEUMATIC HEART DISEASE SCREENING (RHD) 

Gidgee’s RHD screening program gathers vital data to identify adequate specialist 
resources for outreach clinics, follow up treatment and management, health education 
and promotion for children, parents and families. Funded by Queensland Health, the 
team assesses all school aged children in Mount Isa and the Lower Gulf. 

Getting on top of this disease in our communities continues to be a challenge. 
Unfortunately, this year there has been a 2.8% increase in the prevalence of RHD 
in community. One in four people who contract RHD require a surgical intervention, 
which is devastating for our little ones and their families. We are deeply troubled that 
the incidence of this preventable illness is increasing in our communities. However, 
what we see as a highlight is the opportunity to work with community to create a 
culturally appropriate approach that could, with time, ultimately eradicate the disease 
from our communities.

RHD is a preventable condition that disproportionately affects Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander Australians. It is caused by a Group A Streptococcus (Strep A) bacterial 
infection of the throat and skin — acute rheumatic fever (ARF) — which, without 
treatment can result in permanent damage to the heart. Australia has one of the 
highest rates of ARF and RHD in the world. Our First Nations Peoples are up to eight 
times more likely than other groups to be hospitalised and nearly 20 times as likely 
to die from this disease. Symptoms can go unnoticed for years but have serious 
implications when left untreated. RHD affects around 4.4% of people in our Lower 
Gulf communities.

Adult 
patients 193

First 
Nations
patients 267

New
patients 

Paediatric
patients 80

16
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ALLIED HEALTH

The Allied Health team provides services and support to manage chronic 
disease, injury, and illness, and promotes early intervention and prevention. 
This multidisciplinary team includes Physiotherapy, Podiatry, Dietetics, 
Speech Pathology, Occupational Therapy, Social Work, Mental health Nurse, 
Psychology, Exercise Physiology and Optometry. The Allied Health team is 
based in Mount Isa and provides outreach services in Burketown, Doomadgee, 
Mornington Island, and Normanton. 

ALLIED HEALTH OUTREACH SERVICES

Location Number of Visits Patients Seen
First Nations  

Patients

Burketown 35 163 97

Doomadgee 38 374 346

Mornington Island 58 773 704

Normanton 54 829 629

185 2139 1776

WORK IT OUT

Delivered in Mount Isa and Normanton, Work It Out is an IUIH modified exercise and 
education program which supports participants to manage chronic disease through 
physical, social, emotional, spiritual and functional aspects of wellbeing. Tailored 
exercise programs, devised by accredited exercise physiologists, keep participants 
active. Targeted information and awareness sessions increase knowledge and 
understanding around exercise and physical activity, and the benefits of remaining 
active as we age, particularly whilst living with chronic disease. 

The program educates participants around non-exercise aspects of health and 
wellbeing, including diet, wellbeing, culture, law, and language. Work it Out provides 
an inclusive, social setting, where participants are encouraged to open up with one 
another and be welcomed into a supportive and nurturing environment. 

BE WELL LEARN WELL

Be Well Learn Well is a Queensland Department of Education program funded 
by CheckUP. Through this program the Allied Health team identifies the learning 
and social development needs of First Nations and non-Indigenous kids in remote 
Queensland schools. It supports children from pre-prep to year 12, providing early 
intervention and health promotion. Gidgee Healing has been contracted to deliver 
this program in Doomadgee and Mornington Island State Schools.

Delivery of this model in the school, as opposed to a clinical setting is central to 
the implementation and allows for an integrated workforce of education and health 
professionals to respond in a holistic and timely way to the risk factors influencing 
child development and schooling outcomes.

The program supports students’ developmental needs through the delivery 
of targeted psychology, clinical psychology, occupational therapy and speech 
pathology services to identify and treat behavioural and learning issues.
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Therapy Location Visits Patients
First Nation 

Patients

Occupational Therapy Mornington Island 8 77 73

Psychology Mornington Island 8 120 111

Clinical Psychology Mornington Island 5 21 21

Speech Pathology Mornington Island 8 81 29

Occupational Therapy Doomadgee 8 77 77

Psychology Doomadgee 2 8 8

Clinical Psychology Doomadgee 5 13 13

Speech Pathology Doomadgee 8 97 97

Location Patient Numbers

Burketown 58

Doomadgee 118

Mornington Island 185

Mount Isa 411

Normanton 145

917

EYE HEALTH

Funded by CheckUp Australia under the Visiting Optometry 
Scheme (VOS), our eye health program provides optometry 
services to improve the detection of eye disease and ensure 
appropriate treatment and management for people living in 
rural and remote locations. The program aims to:

 · Increase the availability of optometry services in areas of 
identified need

 · Improve the coordination of and integration of eye health 
services and the quality of ongoing patient care

 · Enhance communication between visiting optometrists, local 
health professionals and other visiting health professionals

We are pleased to have created new permanent optometrist 
roles in our team this year. Having additional resources 
enables us to make optometry services more available, and 
reduces our reliance on visiting specialists. It also helps 
us provide better continuity of service and consistency 
of practitioners, so that patients have ongoing access to 
comprehensive eye health services, and do not have to retell 
their history to a new practitioner each time. 

The eye health team provides vision testing, fitting and 
supply of spectacles, and retinal photography. As part of 
vision testing, patients are also screened for essential eye 
health conditions including, cataracts, glaucoma, macular 
degeneration, diabetic retinopathy. 

Eye health also links with other services such as Medical 
Aids Subsidy Scheme (MASS) and Nukal Murra to help 
patients to cover the cost of spectacles, which can be an 
obstacle to accessing service.
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PHARMACY

Pharmacy continues to be a critical part of Gidgee’s 
services and is integrated with our primary health 
teams in Mt Isa and the Lower Gulf Region. Gidgee 
supports the use of medicines in ways that are 
culturally safe, responsive to community needs and 
integrated with other complementary services. The 
service has grown this year with the addition of two 
more pharmacists — one dedicated to aged care 
services and another joining the team in Mount Isa.

Our pharmacists oversee and manage the Standard 
Drug List, which is used across all locations, with 
formularies developed for each site based on local 
requirements. Pharmacists also work with staff, 
patients and the community to improve education 
around medication use. 

NDIS

Gidgee Healing supports NDIS participants and their families to achieve their 
goals. We act as an advocate for our patients, educating them about the scheme 
and how they might benefit from the services available. Gidgee works with 
clients to understand their needs and goals, and support them throughout the 
process. The allied health team performs assessments and provides ongoing 
therapy. We also support patients at their plan manager interview as required. 

2005
300

MEDICATIONS 
COLLECTED BY PATIENTS 

MEDICATIONS 
DELIVERED TO PATIENTS 

13
Mt Isa

251
Mornington 

Island

21
Doomadgee

31 n/a
Normanton Residential 

Aged Care

MEDICATION REVIEWS

23 232TOTAL NUMBER 
OF SCRIPTS

Collaboration has been a key focus for the pharmacy 
this year. We ran a clinic in partnership with 
North West Hospital and Health Service, where 
nurse practitioners and pharmacists sat together 
in consultations with patients. There is a great 
deal of benefit for all involved in this cooperative 
approach, which we are keen to continue next year. 
It’s also been great to build a network and improve 
connectivity with other pharmacists in the community 
and North West Hospital and Health Service who 
also work with our clients.

Moving forward, we are working towards more 
patient centred activity, including more frequent 
medication reviews, and education and awareness  
for patients, community and staff.

PHARMACY DATA 
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The Gidgee Healing SEWB strategy has been developed in consultation with the communities
in which we work. It is based on eight domains of social and emotional wellbeing which 
overlap, depending on individual needs at a given point in time. This model is based on the
National Strategic Framework for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Peoples’ Mental Health 
and Social and Emotional Wellbeing 2017–2023.
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HUMAN SERVICES
SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL WELLBEING

The suite of services offered by our Social and Emotional Wellbeing Program is 
central to our Human Services portfolio. The Program is dedicated to bolstering 
the social and emotional wellbeing of our communities and supporting clients to 
feel connected to culture and mob through cultural activities and special events. 
It takes a grass roots approach to working with our people in community to help 
them get the right support at the right time, by the right person.

The program supports our clients to access culturally safe services and navigate 
social and emotional challenges like mental health, alcohol and other drugs, 
disability, housing, and domestic violence. We can connect our clients with a range 
of counselling and advisory services, and culturally specific events or programs. 
A SEWB worker can provide further support by attending appointments with the 
client, providing transport, general support during the appointment, and ensuring 
a culturally appropriate service is provided by all stakeholders. 

After establishing men’s and women’s groups in the previous period, COVID-19 
restrictions have reduced attendance, but we have been able to achieve some 
good momentum with the men’s group which is run in collaboration with Gidgee’s 
Family Wellbeing Program. The group is a safe space to look out for one another, 
give support, connect with each other, and yarn.

The Gidgee Healing 
SEWB strategy has been 
developed in consultation 
with the communities 
in which we work. It is 
based on eight domains 
of social and emotional 
wellbeing which overlap, 
depending on individual 
needs at a given point in 
time. This model is based 
on the National Strategic 
Framework for Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander 
Peoples’ Mental Health 
and Social and Emotional 
Wellbeing 2017–2023.
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FAMILY WELLBEING 

The Family Wellbeing Service provides First Nations families with access to 
culturally responsive support to help with their social, emotional, physical and 
spiritual wellbeing, and support to build the capacity for parents to safely care 
for and protect their children. The service supports children, young people and 
families living in Mount Isa, the Lower Gulf and other communities of the North 
West Queensland Region.

Funded by the Department of Children, Youth Justice and Multicultural Affairs, the 
service works with families across the North West and Lower Gulf region, providing 
holistic case management and therapeutic support. There is a strong focus on the 
overall health and wellbeing of families and integrating across all Gidgee Healing’s 
Primary Health and Human Services programs. The service assists families and 
communities to access supports and resources that are reflective of community and 
family strengths and that meet specific needs of communities.

During the 2021 financial year, we have worked hard to progress the ongoing 
promotion and sustainability of the program. With families being ‘front and centre’ of 
our work, the Family Wellbeing Service has concentrated on enhancing and improving 
service delivery and practice to strengthen the existing ‘family centric model of care”. 

Key areas of focus for the period were: 
 · Facilitating availability and access to early intervention supports and health care  

for families and communities 
 · Increased promotion of ‘family led decision-making’ to support all families to have  

a voice in decisions that are made about their family members 
 · Strengthening access, relationships and networks with government and non-

government services in communities 

HIGHLIGHTS IN 2021 FOR FAMILY WELLBEING

 · Increased referrals from families self-referring, plus other sources
 · Continued collaboration with Queensland Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Child Protection 

Peak (QATSICPP) in Community of Practice and regular training 
 · Increased engagement and collaboration to strengthen referral pathways with partners, 

stakeholders and local service providers 
 · Membership on the Cleveland Youth Detention Centre First Nations Cultural Advisory Network
 · Established pathways for integration across Gidgee Healing’s portfolio
 · Key partners in the ‘Youth and Family Connecting’ initiative 
 · Commenced outreach services and increased community engagement in Doomadgee 
 · Stakeholder engagements in Doomadgee, Burketown and Mornington Island
 · Implemented coordination with local family and youth support services in Normanton 
 · Re-established Normanton Playgroup 
 · Working with the Royal Flying Doctor Service child mental health clinician in Normanton to 

support engagement with clients who have identified a need for this support in their case plans 
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YOUTH JUSTICE REFORM INITIATIVE

Gidgee’s Family Wellbeing Service is funded under Youth Justice Reform 
Initiative, run by the Department of Children, Youth Justice and Multicultural 
Affairs. The funding is targeted to services operating in high need locations, 
identified based on the average number of young people who are on remand  
in either a watch-house or detention centre. 

Youth and Family Workers position Gidgee’s Family Wellbeing Services to respond 
to families where children and young people are at risk of entering — or are already 
in contact with — the youth justice system. Youth and Family Workers may develop 
specific strategies for connecting with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander young 
people, including involvement in broader community youth responses. In these 
circumstances there may be a period of engagement with young people before  
the worker establishes connections with their family. 

Family Wellbeing Service employs two Indigenous Youth and 
Family Workers with one worker based in Mount Isa and  
another in Normanton.

MUMS AND BUBS PROGRAM

The ‘Mums and Bubs’ Program is an essential program of the Family Wellbeing 
Service and is designed to support mums from the Lower Gulf region who need to 
leave their communities and travel to Mount Isa for ante-natal and post-natal care 
and birthing services. A part-time Family Support Worker works in partnership with 
Mount Isa Hospital and Health Services and other health and community services 
including maternal and child health and family support services to access holistic  
and culturally appropriate support and follow-up health care.
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NORMANTON RECOVERY AND COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING SERVICE

Funded by the National Indigenous Australians Agency, the Normanton Recovery  
and Community Wellbeing Service (NRCWS) is a specialist alcohol and other drug 
service, designed to support Indigenous men and women across the Lower Gulf 
region who misuse, or are at risk of misusing, alcohol and other harmful substances. 

The 24-hour service offers a range of treatment programs for people struggling with 
addiction, helping them live a sober, healthy and happy lifestyle. The centre provides 
culturally appropriate support for physical, emotional and social wellbeing during 
residential rehabilitation. Education about alcohol and other drugs, plus after care and 
community and cultural wellbeing initiatives are a key component of the service.

The centre has a 20 bed residential facility including kitchen, living space, recreational 
area, training facility, and outdoor space. The residential program is delivered over six, 
eight, or twelve week periods.

Despite COVID-19 restrictions halving the number of beds we could make available  
in the centre, NRCWS has maintained a 79% occupancy rate and we have been able 
to play a part in several events within movement and gathering constraints, including:

 · Kup Murri for NAIDOC Week celebrations in Normanton 
 · Closing the Gap street parade during Normanton Rodeo week, which was themed 

‘Beating the Blues’ and sponsored by Gidgee Healing
 · Normanton ‘Closing the Gap’ event
 · Two overnight community youth camping trips (one for young males, one for young 

females) 
 · Six camping on country events for residents and aftercare and outreach clients

Other highlights for the year included:

 · Three outreach trips to Mornington Island
 · Specialist alcohol and other drugs and related training for residents, including ‘Back 

in Control’, ‘Anger Management’ and ‘Love Bites’ relationship training, all delivered by 
the Mount Isa Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drugs Service 

 · Two residents securing full time and part-time employment 
 · A range of vocational training for participants, such as machinery operation licences, 

hospitality, first aid, wildlife conservation, and financial literacy. 

33

TOTAL  
PARTICIPANTS 

TOTAL  MALE 6TOTAL  FEMALE

39 TOTAL 
FIRST NATIONS 
PARTICIPANTS 33
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DEADLY CHOICES

Deadly Choices is an initiative of the Institute for Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH). 
It empowers First Nations peoples to make healthy choices for themselves and 
their families. Goals include stopping smoking, eating good food and exercising 
daily. The initiative delivers a range of activities to support people to make 
healthy choices. This year we had 502 participants in the Deadly Choices 
Program across all activities, including:

 · Community events and stalls 
 · Healthy Lifestyle program in schools
 · Tobacco Cessation Program 
 · Community tobacco surveys and pledges,
 · Good Tukka Program 
 · Senior Games 
 · DC Fit Program 

Community events and engagement activities are a significant part of the Deadly 
Choices Program and have been able to continue within the constraints of 
COVID-19 gathering requirements. During the year we ran the following events:

 · 53 stalls at community engagement activities 
 · Deadly Choices Back to School Health Checks and Fun Day
 · Doomadgee Fishing Competition
 · World no Tobacco Day Event 
 · Senior Elders Games Fun Day 

Deadly Choices is based in Mount Isa, however this year the team has travelled to the 
Gulf to deliver services and host events. We’re particularly proud to have hosted the 
Doomadgee Fishing Competition, which incorporated a health check as a requirement 
of attending.
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PROGRAM PARTICIPATION DATA

TOBACCO CESSATION PROGRAM

Pledges 500

Stalls 104

Stall Participants 944

Tobacco Surveys 824

Tobacco Referrals 5

DEADLY CHOICES HEALTHY LIFESTYLE PROGRAM 

Junior DC HLP Senior DC HLP

Programs run 19 11

Participants 322 81

715 Health Checks attended 69 8

Community 
Group

Tobacco 
Education

Programs run 4 3

Participants 33 19

715 Health Checks performed 20 15

GOOD TUKKA PROGRAM

Junior Good 
Tukka

Senior Good 
Tukka

Senior 
Games

No. of programs run 1 2 5

No. of participants 12 26 45

Number of 715 Health 
Checks

4 22 15
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HEADSPACE

Gidgee Healing is the lead agency for headspace in Mount Isa. The service 
provides free, high quality, early intervention health services for young people 
aged 12-25, who need help with mental, physical, and sexual health. headspace 
also delivers vocational support, plus information and education about alcohol 
and other drugs. 

We are the only service in the region that delivers a holistic suite of youth focussed 
services under one roof. All members of the headspace Mount Isa team are trained 
youth specialists, who work to engage, support, and empower young people to 
increase resilience and improve the health and wellbeing of our young people.  
We are also the only headspace centre in Queensland that sits within the Aboriginal 
Community Controlled Health Organisation model.

Last year, 115 new young people accessed our services for the first time. We 
continue to respond and modify the headspace model for young First Nations people, 
and we are pleased that 91% of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander young people 
surveyed indicated they felt listened to and comfortable at headspace. The service is 
proud of its 98% satisfaction rating.

We were very pleased to be involved in a national headspace project that aims  
to create a culturally safe and appropriate model of practice or practice framework 
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island young people across Australia. The framework 
will be used as a guide for all centres around Australia to support and enhance 
practitioners’ skills to work with First Nations young people. Our staff were excited  
to contribute to this project by giving feedback to ensure that headspace resources 
are inclusive and respectful of Aboriginal young people’s diverse needs. 

INDIVIDUAL PLACEMENT AND SUPPORT

headspace Mount Isa is also a hub for the Individual Placement and Support 
(IPS) program. Offered in 24 headspace centres across Australia, IPS is part of 
the Australian Government’s Youth Employment Strategy to tackle high youth 
unemployment and improve the educational and employment outcomes for young 
people with mental illness. IPS supports young people to gain employment and 
undertake meaningful vocational activities. 

The model is the most researched strengths-based approach to 
supported employment, and incorporates eight core principles: 

 · Focus on competitive employment
 · Work incentives planning 
 · Eligibility based on individual’s choice
 · Rapid job search
 · Integration of mental health and employment services
 · Systematic job development
 · Attention to client preferences
 · Individualised job supports
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The program began as a trial in early 2017 and we are delighted that funding has 
been extended to June 2024. 

In the recent Fidelity Review conducted by IPS Works (who designed and license the 
model), our implementation of the program achieved a ‘good’ fidelity rating (112/125), 
which is a further improvement on last year’s rating and only three points short of an 
‘exemplary’ score.

YOUTH WEEK EVENTS

headspace Mount Isa coordinated Youth Week activities this year, with a full calendar 
of events. They worked with around 20 sponsors, including Gidgee Healing, to hold 
a dedicated event every day, including touch football on Monday, movie on Tuesday, 
Baskedtball at Yallambie on Wednesday and so forth. The events were well attended 
and received positive feedback. 

COMMUNITY TOUCHPOINTS

Community groups are an important part of headspace and help to provide a gentle 
introduction to the services offered. We are working with local high schools, with staff 
visiting fortnightly, to promote mental health literacy, raise awareness and decrease 
the stigma around mental health issues. We also facilitate various groups, including:

 · F.R.I.E.N.D.S — a group for young people who struggle to make friends and 
socialise with others

 · PRISMA — a support group for young people who identify as LGBTIQA+ and 
their families 

 · Snack and Go — an afternoon program to introduce young people to headspace, 
targeting young people walking home after school from Spinifex Junior

Coffee Corner continues to be a well-attended gathering that most of the service 
sector and community are aware of. It is well regarded as a place and time to meet 
with other colleagues in the sector and introduce the community to headspace staff 
and take them on a tour of the building.

LOOKING AHEAD

During the next financial year, we will be introducing two new groups to our 
school program. One will be for young women at the Spinifex State College 
residential campus focusing on strong mind, body and spirit, and another group 
called ‘Navigating Happiness’, created for all young adults aged between 17-25. 
We are also looking forward to commencing fortnightly outreach visits to support 
young people at Cloncurry State School.

We are particularly excited that headspace Mount Isa will become a partner to 
a youth research project in Cloncurry and Normanton in partnership with James 
Cook University. The project — ‘Co-designing and Evaluating Youth Mental Health 
Services in Remote Queensland Communities’ — aims to assess the burden of 
youth mental health issues in remote communities, and co-design a service and 
evaluation structure with the young people who will access the services. 
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NUMBER OF YOUNG PEOPLE WHO IDENTIFY AS INDIGENOUS 
WHO ACCESSED A SERVICE

62.8
not Indigenous

66
not Indigenous

37.2
Indigenous

34
Indigenous

The number of Indigenous young people who engaged with headspace Mount Isa decreased  
from 37% to 34%. The decrease was influenced by COVID-19 restrictions.

FY2021

NUMBER OF YOUNG PEOPLE WHO RECEIVED A SERVICE AT HEADSPACE 
MOUNT ISA EACH MONTH

FY 2020 FY 2021
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YOUNG PEOPLE SERVICED BY AGE

FY2020

FY2021
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AGED CARE SERVICES
We feel privileged to now be caring for older members of our Gulf communities. 
In January 2021, we expanded our services into aged care, taking over the 
management of three facilities in Normanton, Doomadgee and Mornington Island. 
Kukatja Place in Normanton and Kuba Natha Hostel on Mornington Island each 
have 15 beds. Ngooderi House in Doomadgee is a 10 bed facility.

Funded by the Queensland Department of Health, Gidgee Healing’s aged care 
services aim to improve quality and access to flexible, culturally safe aged care 
services for older Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people close to their homes and 
communities. Services are provided through the aged care facilities and to patients in 
their homes.

Food from Meals on Wheels is provided in community, with food packs 
available for approximately 50 community members that live in the lower gulf 
communities of Mornington Island, Doomadgee and Normanton. 

During the transition Gidgee Healing has worked hard to keep disruption to a 
minimum for the residents in our facilities. Management arrangements were put in 
place to transition the aged care facilities from North West Remote Health Service to 
Gidgee Healing. A Director of Aged Care and Residential Care was appointed at the 
end of the 2021 financial year and is due to commence in July 2021.

During the transition, Gidgee Healing has:
 · Established an operational team to support the transition of service delivery, 

employment, technology, procurement and quality and safety matters 
 · Transitioned employees across and managed the industrial relations of this
 · Replaced or repaired facilities and equipment as required
 · Transitioned information, communication and technology services associated with 

each facility across to our operations
 · Engaged with community members and leaders including local shire 

representatives, health services, elders’ groups and other non–government 
organisations and community services

 · Developed a workforce model aligned with service delivery requirements and 
funding availability
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your directors present this report on behalf of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd
for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Directors names

The names of each person who has been a Director during the year, and to the date of this report, are listed
below.  Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless
otherwise stated:  

Shaun Solomon

Mona Phillips

Michael Martin OAM

Leann Shaw

Darren Walden

Patricia Richards

James Cripps

Alan Nyhuis

Principal activities

The principal activities of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd are to provide high
quality, sustainable and comprehensive primary health care services comprising a balance of clinical and
population health programs for treatment, prevention and education.  The services are provided in Mt Isa and

in the lower Gulf of Carpentaria region.     

Objectives and strategies

The objectives and strategies of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd are to:  

 Provide services that are culturally safe, responsive to community needs, and integrated with other

complementary service providers.  

 Broaden its scope of services to support patients and clients in the areas of mental health and emotional

and social wellbeing and drug and alcohol and substance misuse and aged care and family support and

child safety; where these services contribute to improving health outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait

Islander peoples. 

Our Vision

Gidgee Healing’s vision is to make a significant and growing contribution towards achieving equity in health
outcomes for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples of Mount Isa and in the lower Gulf of
Carpentaria region. 

- 1 -
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Our Purpose

Gidgee Healing will achieve its purpose by providing high quality, sustainable and comprehensive primary
health care services comprising a balance of clinical and population health programs for treatment, prevention
and education. 

Information on directors

Shaun Solomon Chair of the Board of Directors and Elected Director

Qualifications Graduate Diploma of Indigenous Health Promotion; Certificate III Aboriginal
Primary Health Care.

Experience Fellow, Australian Rural Leadership Foundation; Board Member (Secretary)
Young People Ahead; Member, Australian Health Promotion Association;
Cultural Training Facilitator, North West Hospital and Health Service,
James Cook University, Generalist Medical Training.

Date of Appointment 01/12/2011

Mona Phillips Elected Director

Qualifications B. App. Sc. Indigenous Community Management and Development;
Certificate IV Health Promotion; and Certificate IV Training and
Assessment.

Experience Retired. Adjunct Professor James Cook University Mount Isa Centre for
Rural and Remote Health; thirty-five years’ experience working as a
volunteer in Aboriginal organisations.

Date of Appointment 09/02/2013

Michael Martin OAM Independent Director

Qualifications BA, Graduate Diploma Administration, B Commerce, FCPA, GAICD.

Experience Managing Director, Top Hospital Executive Management Consultancy
Services; Chairman NT Build; Chairman NT Remuneration Tribunal.

Date of Appointment 01/12/2012

Leann Shaw Deputy Chair of the Board of Directors and Elected Director

Qualifications Associate Degree Indigenous Community Management and Development;
Diploma Aboriginal Studies; Certificate III Community Services; United
Nations Diplomacy Training Course; various courses in Mental Health,
Alcohol and Drug Services.

Experience Board member, Young People Ahead; Yarning Circle facilitator; Indigenous
Rehabilitation Assistance, MICRRH; Former Project Officer, Anyinginyi.

Date of Appointment 09/02/2013
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information on directors (Continued)

Darren Walden Elected Director

Qualifications Health Worker / Support Worker; Train the Trainer; Safety and Emergency
Technician.

Experience Youth Worker, Injilinji Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Corporation for
Children and Youth Services; former Board Member Prescribed Body
Corporate Waanyi; Former Board Member North Gawalanja Aboriginal
Corporation Waanyi. 

Date of Appointment 09/02/2013

James Cripps Elected Director

Qualifications Graduate Diploma in Health - Substance Misuse 

Experience Queensland Health, Senior Prevention Officer, Mental Health and Alcohol,
Tobacco and other drugs. Twenty years of experience working in health and
health related matters for Indigenous people.

Date of Appointment 17/12/2019

Alan Nyhuis Independent Director

Qualifications Solicitor of the Supreme Court of Queensland

Experience Experience with providing support and referrals to clients seeking
assistance with housing, homelessness, income support, domestic
violence, disability, and day to day challenges.  Advocate for and support
clients who are negotiating and liaising with government agencies and other
authorities.  Provide advice and assistance to marginalised individuals
including Indigenous and people from culturally and linguistically diverse
backgrounds.

Date of Appointment 25/07/2019

Patricia Richards Elected Director

Qualifications Diploma in Government

Experience Providing leadership in Closing the Gap for Mornington Island and
Doomadgee Aboriginal communities, acting as the interface between the
communities and the Commonwealth and Queensland governments to
coordinate service delivery at the communities.

Special responsibilities 21/03/2019
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Meetings of directors

Directors Directors' meetings
Audit committee

meetings

Eligible to
attend

Number
attended

Number
eligible to

attend

Number
attended

Shaun Solomon 9 9 3 3

Mona Phillips 9 8 6 6

Michael Martin OAM 9 8 6 6

Leann Shaw 9 7 6 4

Darren Walden 9 6 - -

James Cripps 9 9 6 5

Alan Nyhuis 9 8 - -

Patricia Richards 9 5 - -

Members guarantee

The company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. If the
company is wound up, the Constitution states that each member is required to contribute to a maximum of
$10 each towards meeting any outstandings and obligations of the company. At 30 June 2021 the number of
members was 79. The combined total amount that members of the company are liable to contribute if the
company is wound up is $790.

Signed on behalf of the board of directors.

Director: 

Director: 

Dated this day of 2022

- 4 -
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The Directors 
Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Limited 
8 Burke Street 
Mount Isa QLD 4825 

 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

 

In relation to the independent audit for the year ended 30 June 2021, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief there have been no contraventions of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(including Independence Standards). 
 

 

 
PITCHER PARTNERS 
 
 
 
 
JASON EVANS 
Partner 
 
Brisbane, Queensland 
01 March 2022 

 

 



7
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The Directors 
Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Limited 
8 Burke Street 
Mount Isa QLD 4825 

 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

 

In relation to the independent audit for the year ended 30 June 2021, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief there have been no contraventions of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(including Independence Standards). 
 

 

 
PITCHER PARTNERS 
 
 
 
 
JASON EVANS 
Partner 
 
Brisbane, Queensland 
01 March 2022 

 

 

MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020

$ $

Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers 2 31,358,208 26,740,160

Other revenue and other income 3 4,767,616 4,712,134

36,125,824 31,452,294

Less: expenses

Employee benefits expense 4 (23,343,945) (19,422,838)

Program administation expense (3,748,733) (2,147,982)

Travel and accomodation expense (1,927,065) (2,046,718)

Occupancy expense (1,138,613) (1,133,498)

Professional fees (1,064,434) (1,241,562)

Telephone expense (985,849) (689,411)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 (2,244,767) (1,992,235)

Repairs and maintenance expense (703,982) (718,427)

Medical services and supplies (620,663) (488,784)

Computer and IT expense (419,838) (670,170)

Client support costs (330,685) (335,244)

Auspice fees - (330,880)

Finance costs 4 (7,624) (75,679)

Other expenses (1,630,152) (1,810,636)

(38,166,350) (33,104,064)

Net deficit before income tax expense (2,040,526) (1,651,770)

Income tax expense 1(d) - -

Net deficit for the year (2,040,526) (1,651,770)

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income/(deficit) (2,040,526) (1,651,770)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020

$ $

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 8,181,973 9,681,380

Receivables 6 840,190 270,963

Contract assets 7 2,690,506 479,212

Other financial assets 8 33,842 33,446

Other assets 9 7,181 386,278

Total current assets 11,753,692 10,851,279

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 1,585,313 2,014,294

Lease assets 12 1,619,780 1,492,410

Intangible assets 11 - 402,491

Total non-current assets 3,205,093 3,909,195

Total assets 14,958,785 14,760,474

Current liabilities

Payables 13 3,032,022 3,881,995

Lease liabilities 12 887,421 1,074,385

Provisions 14 892,653 582,047

Contract liablities 15 5,582,827 2,860,211

Total current liabilities 10,394,923 8,398,638

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 12 878,689 460,227

Provisions 14 195,197 371,107

Total non-current liabilities 1,073,886 831,334

Total liabilities 11,468,809 9,229,972

Net assets 3,489,976 5,530,502

Equity

Accumulated surplus 3,489,976 5,530,502

Total equity 3,489,976 5,530,502

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note
Accumulated

surplus Total equity

$ $

Balance as at 1 July 2019 7,182,272 7,182,272

Deficit for the year (1,651,770) (1,651,770)

Total comprehensive deficit for the year (1,651,770) (1,651,770)

Balance as at 30 June 2020 5,530,502 5,530,502

Balance as at 1 July 2020 5,530,502 5,530,502

Deficit for the year (2,040,526) (2,040,526)

Total comprehensive deficit for the year (2,040,526) (2,040,526)

Balance as at 30 June 2021 3,489,976 3,489,976

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020

$ $

Cash flow from operating activities

Receipts from customers 36,035,645 30,380,403

Payments to suppliers and employees (36,069,237) (30,144,845)

Interest received 32,274 92,388

Finance costs (7,624) (75,679)

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 16(b) (8,942) 252,267

Cash flow from investing activities

Payment for property, plant and equipment - (312,902)

Payment for financial assets (396) (1,013)

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (396) (313,915)

Cash flow from financing activities

Principal portion of lease payments (1,490,069) (1,260,455)

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities (1,490,069) (1,260,455)

Reconciliation of cash

Cash at beginning of the financial year 9,681,380 11,003,483

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held (1,499,407) (1,322,103)

Cash at end of financial year 16(a) 8,181,973 9,681,380

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements, Interpretations and other applicable authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report covers Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd as an individual
entity. Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd is a company limited by guarantee,
incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd is a
not-for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

The financial report was approved by the directors as at the date of the directors' report.

The following are the significant accounting policies adopted by the company in the preparation and
presentation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report

Historical Cost Convention

The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by revaluations to fair
value for certain classes of assets and liabilities as described in the accounting policies.

(b) Revenue from contracts with customers

Operating grants

Grants under arrangements that contain enforceable and sufficiently specific obligations are initially
recognised as a liability (contract liability), and subsequently recognised as income as, or when, the company
satisfies the conditions under the grant agreement. The liability is unwound when the costs are incurred on the
grant.

Capital grant

A transfer of a financial asset, including cash, to enable the company to acquire or construct a recognisable
non-financial asset to identified specifications to be controlled by the company, such as an item of property,
plant and equipment., is referred to in the financial statements as a 'capital grant'. Capital grants are initially
recognised as a liability (contract liability), and subsequently recognised as income as, or when, the company
satisfies its obligation to acquire or construct the specific asset to which the capital grant relates. For the
acquisition of specified assets, income is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the
company. For the construction of specified assets, income is recognised as the construction progresses on
the basis of costs incurred relative to expected costs.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements, Interpretations and other applicable authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report covers Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd as an individual
entity. Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd is a company limited by guarantee,
incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd is a
not-for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

The financial report was approved by the directors as at the date of the directors' report.

The following are the significant accounting policies adopted by the company in the preparation and
presentation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report

Historical Cost Convention

The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by revaluations to fair
value for certain classes of assets and liabilities as described in the accounting policies.

(b) Revenue from contracts with customers

Operating grants

Grants under arrangements that contain enforceable and sufficiently specific obligations are initially
recognised as a liability (contract liability), and subsequently recognised as income as, or when, the company
satisfies the conditions under the grant agreement. The liability is unwound when the costs are incurred on the
grant.

Capital grant

A transfer of a financial asset, including cash, to enable the company to acquire or construct a recognisable
non-financial asset to identified specifications to be controlled by the company, such as an item of property,
plant and equipment., is referred to in the financial statements as a 'capital grant'. Capital grants are initially
recognised as a liability (contract liability), and subsequently recognised as income as, or when, the company
satisfies its obligation to acquire or construct the specific asset to which the capital grant relates. For the
acquisition of specified assets, income is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the
company. For the construction of specified assets, income is recognised as the construction progresses on
the basis of costs incurred relative to expected costs.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Other revenue and other income

Services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers.

Interest

Interest revenue is measured in accordance with the effective interest method.

All revenue is measured net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Government grants - COVID-19

Government grants in relation to COVID-19 are recognised when there is reasonable certainity that the grant
will be recieved and all grant conditions are met. Grants relating to expense items are recognised as income
over the period necessary to match the grant to the costs they are compensating. 

These grants include amounts received under the Federal Government's Cash Flow Scheme, which provides
a temporary subsidy to eligible businesses significantly affected by coronavirus (COVID-19)

(d) Income tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of
the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(e) Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the company commits itself
to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except where the
instrument is classified as fair value through profit or loss, in which case transaction costs are immediately
recognised as expenses in profit or loss.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets recognised by the company are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value. 

Classification of financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities recognised by the company are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables arise from the company’s transactions with its customers and are normally
settled within 30 days.

Consistent with both the company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the assets, trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The following financial assets are tested for impairment by applying the ‘expected credit loss’ impairment
model:

(a) debt instruments measured at amortised cost;

(b) debt instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income; and

(c) receivables from contracts with customers, contract assets and lease receivables.

The company applies the simplified approach under AASB 9 to measuring the allowance for credit losses for
receivables from contracts with customers, contract assets and lease receivables. Under the AASB 9
simplified approach, the company determines the allowance for credit losses for receivables from contracts
with customers, contract assets and lease receivables on the basis of the lifetime expected credit losses of
the financial asset. Lifetime expected credit losses represent the expected credit losses that are expected to
result from default events over the expected life of the financial asset.

The company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks, short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less held at call with financial institutions, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is measured at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Plant and equipment is brought to account at cost for individual items over $2,000.

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated. The depreciable amount of all other property, plant and equipment is depreciated
over their estimated useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held available for use, consistent with
the estimated consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Class of fixed asset Depreciation rates Depreciation basis

Leasehold improvements at cost 10 - 20% Straight line

Plant and equipment at cost 10 - 30% Straight line

Motor vehicles at cost 12.5 - 25% Straight line
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, intangible assets not yet ready for use and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
subject to amortisation and are therefore tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are generally grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash flows ('cash generating units'). Accordingly, most assets are tested for impairment at
the cash-generating unit level.  Because it does not generate cash flows independently of other assets or
groups of assets, goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit or units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies arising from the business combination that gave rise to the goodwill.

Assets other than goodwill, intangible assets not yet ready for use and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are assessed for impairment whenever events or circumstances arise that indicate the asset may be
impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds the
asset's or cash generating unit's recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating
unit is defined as the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use (where ‘value in use’ is
determined as the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit).

Impairment losses in respect of individual assets are recognised immediately in profit or loss unless the asset
is measured at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
and is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent that it does not exceed the amount in the
revaluation surplus for the same class of asset. Impairment losses in respect of cash generating units are
allocated first against the carrying amount of any goodwill attributed to the cash generating unit with any
remaining impairment loss allocated on a pro rata basis to the other assets comprising the relevant cash
generating unit.

A reversal of an impairment loss for an asset measured at cost is recognised in profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss for an asset measured at a revalued amount is treated as a revaluation increase and is
recognised in other comprehensive income, except to the extent that an impairment loss on the same class of
asset was previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case a reversal of that impairment loss is also
recognised in profit or loss.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Leases

At the commencement date of a lease (other than leases of 12-months or less and leases of low value
assets), the company recognises a lease asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

Lease assets

Lease assets are initially recognised at cost, comprising the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease, less any lease
incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the company, and an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the company in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease assets are measured at cost (adjusted for any remeasurement of the
associated lease liability), less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Lease assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the underlying
asset, consistent with the estimated consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the underlying asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are initially recognised at the present value of the future lease payments (i.e., the lease
payments that are unpaid at the commencement date of the lease). These lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or otherwise using the
company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (i.e., the lease payments that are unpaid at the reporting date). Interest expense on lease liabilities
is recognised in profit or loss (presented as a component of finance costs). Lease liabilities are remeasured to
reflect changes to lease terms, changes to lease payments and any lease modifications not accounted for as
separate leases.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are recognised as an expense
when incurred.

Leases of 12-months or less and leases of low value assets

Lease payments made in relation to leases of 12-months or less and leases of low value assets (for which a
lease asset and a lease liability has not been recognised) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(j) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably
measured.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefit obligations

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and other employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the reporting period
are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts based on remuneration rates which are expected to be paid
when the liability is settled. The expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated
absences such as annual leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other short-term
employee benefit obligations are presented as payables in the statement of financial position.

(ii) Long-term employee benefit obligations

The provision for other long-term employee benefits, including obligations for long service leave and annual
leave, which are not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the reporting period,
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made in respect of the services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future
wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee turnover, and are discounted at rates determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid. Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of
obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the
change occurs.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial
position if the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. All other long-term
employee benefit obligations are presented as non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

(iii) Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution superannuation plan

The company makes superannuation contributions to the employee's defined contribution superannuation
plan of choice in respect of employee services rendered during the year. These superannuation contributions
are recognised as an expense in the same period when the related employee services are received. The
company's obligation with respect to employee's defined contributions entitlements is limited to its obligation
for any unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions at the end of the reporting period.  All obligations for
unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be
paid when the obligation is settled and are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

(l) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and purchased assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and
payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of
investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with
current year disclosures.

(n) Economic dependence

Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd is dependent on the Departments of both the
State and Commonwealth Governments for the majority of its revenue used to operate the business.  At the
date of this report, the Board of Directors has reason to believe these Departments will continue to support
Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

$ $

NOTE 2: REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue from contracts with customers

- State / federal government grants 30,008,212 25,601,470

- Private grants 1,349,996 1,138,690

31,358,208 26,740,160

NOTE 3: OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Interest income 32,274 92,388

Not-for-profit revenue

Medicare income 2,546,038 2,689,807

Practice incentives 608,275 330,595

Checkup income 963,625 831,281

4,117,938 3,851,683

Other revenue 617,404 768,063

4,767,616 4,712,134

NOTE 4: NET DEFICIT

Net deficit has been determined after:

Finance costs

- Interest expense - AASB 16 7,624 75,679

Depreciation

- leasehold improvements 314,069 374,540

- plant and equipment 101,972 83,823

- motor vehicles 12,940 12,975

- leased buildings 863,232 831,981

- leased motor vehicles 550,063 470,676

1,842,276 1,773,995

Amortisation 402,491 218,240

Employee benefits:

- Salaries and wages 15,702,596 13,486,435

- Superannuation 1,421,109 1,240,113

- Medical fees 4,814,294 4,001,516

- Other employee benefits 1,405,946 694,774

23,343,945 19,422,838

- Misappropriation of monies - 579,154
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

$ $

NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand 50 50

Cash at bank 8,181,923 9,681,330

8,181,973 9,681,380

NOTE 6: RECEIVABLES

CURRENT

Trade receivables 872,646 207,624

Allowance for credit losses (103,476) -

769,170 207,624

Other receivables 71,020 63,339

840,190 270,963

NOTE 7: CONTRACT ASSETS

CURRENT

Contract asset 2,690,506 479,212

A contract asset represents the company’s right to consideration (not being an unconditional right recognised
as a receivable) in relation to a contract with the customer or construction of an asset over the amounts that
has been invoiced to the customer or the grantor. Contract assets are measured at the amount of
consideration that the company expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services transferred or the
construction of a non-financial asset. Contract assets arise in relation to grant revenue. 

Included in the contract asset noted above is $1,087,787 representing actual expenditure and services
performed by Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd in relation to the Aged Care
Services - Transition Support Program for which funding has not yet been received as at 30 June 2021.

NOTE 8: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

CURRENT

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Term deposits (term < 12 months) 33,842 33,446

NOTE 9: OTHER ASSETS

CURRENT

Prepayments 7,181 386,278
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

$ $

NOTE 10: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold improvements

At cost 2,943,609 2,943,607

Accumulated depreciation (1,760,706) (1,446,635)

1,182,903 1,496,972

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment at cost 1,228,086 1,228,086

Accumulated depreciation (933,306) (831,334)

294,780 396,752

Motor vehicles at cost 777,472 777,472

Accumulated depreciation (669,842) (656,902)

107,630 120,570

Total plant and equipment 402,410 517,322

Total property, plant and equipment 1,585,313 2,014,294

(a) Reconciliations

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at
the beginning and end of the current financial year

Leasehold improvements

Opening carrying amount 1,496,972 1,871,512

Depreciation expense (314,069) (374,540)

Closing carrying amount 1,182,903 1,496,972

Plant and equipment

Opening carrying amount 396,752 212,672

Additions - 267,903

Depreciation expense (101,972) (83,823)

Closing carrying amount 294,780 396,752

Motor vehicles

Opening carrying amount 120,570 88,545

Additions - 45,000

Depreciation expense (12,940) (12,975)

Closing carrying amount 107,630 120,570
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

$ $

NOTE 11: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software at cost 655,295 655,295

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (655,295) (252,804)

- 402,491

(a) Reconciliations

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning
and end of the current financial year

Software at cost

Opening balance 402,491 620,731

Amortisation (402,491) (218,240)

Closing balance - 402,491

NOTE 12: LEASE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(a) Lease assets

Land and buildings

Buildings

Under lease 1,598,494 1,965,840

Accumulated depreciation (1,208,300) (831,981)

390,194 1,133,859

Motor vehicles

Motor vehicles under lease 2,021,918 829,227

Accumulated depreciation (792,332) (470,676)

1,229,586 358,551

Total carrying amount of lease assets 1,619,780 1,492,410

Reconciliations

Reconciliation of the carry amount of lease assets at the beginning and end
of the financial year:

Buildings

Opening carrying amount 1,133,859 -

Additions 119,567 1,965,840

Depreciation (863,232) (831,981)

Closing carrying amount 390,194 1,133,859

Motor vehicles

Opening carrying amount 358,551 -

Additions 1,421,098 829,227

Depreciation (550,063) (470,676)

Closing carrying amount 1,229,586 358,551
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

$ $

NOTE 12: LEASE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Lease liabilities

CURRENT

Buildings - Lease liability 407,169 758,709

Motor vehicle - Lease liability 480,252 315,676

887,421 1,074,385

NON CURRENT

Buildings - Lease liability 108,683 411,429

Motor vehicle - Lease liability 770,006 48,798

878,689 460,227

Total carrying amount of lease liabilities 1,766,110 1,534,612

NOTE 13: PAYABLES

CURRENT

Unsecured liabilities

Trade creditors 25,751 565,617

GST payable 431,571 754,902

Employment related payables 830,155 2,171,792

Accrued expenses 1,744,545 389,684

3,032,022 3,881,995

NOTE 14: PROVISIONS

CURRENT

Employee benefits 892,653 582,047

NON CURRENT

Employee benefits 195,197 371,107

NOTE 15: CONTRACT LIABILITIES

CURRENT

Contract liability 5,582,827 2,860,211

A contract liability represents the company’s obligation to provide future services under contractual
arrangements that contain enforceable and sufficiently specific performance obligations for which the company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) in advance of those services being
provided. Amounts recorded as contract liabilities are subsequently recognised as revenue as performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are generally satisfied within the time detailed within each
grant agreement. 
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

$ $

NOTE 16: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash
flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position
as follows:

Cash on hand 50 50

Cash at bank 8,181,923 9,681,330

8,181,973 9,681,380

(b) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit after income tax

Net surplus/(deficit) after income tax (2,040,526) (1,651,770)

Adjustments and non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation 2,244,767 1,992,235

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) / decrease in receivables (569,227) 1,000,670

(Increase) / decrease in other assets 379,097 (363,878)

(Increase) / decrease in contract asset (2,211,294) (479,212)

Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities - (4,307,398)

Increase / (decrease) in payables (669,071) 827,068

Increase / (decrease) in contract liabilities 2,722,616 2,860,211

Increase / (decrease) in provisions 134,696 374,341

Cash flows from operating activities (8,942) 252,267
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

$ $

NOTE 17: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

Key management personnel compensation 917,699 908,736

NOTE 18: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with key management personnel of the entity or its parent and their personally
related entities

During the year, an independent skills based director Michael Martin was paid a total of $17,800 exclusive
GST via Top Hospital Executive Management. No payable balance remain's as of 30 June 2021 (2020:
$16,563). This excludes director fees and incidental costs associated with director meetings.

NOTE 19: CONTINGENT ASSETS

There are no contingent assets that have been incurred by the Company in relation to 2021 Financial Year.
Prior year a contingent asset existed for a pending insurance claim regarding misappropriation of monies
incurred through the financial period. 

NOTE 20: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no contingent liabilities that have been incurred by the Company in relation to 2021 or 2020
Financial Year.

NOTE 21: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

There has been no matter or circumstance, which has arisen since 30 June 2021 that has significantly
affected or may significantly affect:

(a) the operations, in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2021, of the company, or
(b) the results of those operations, or
(c) the state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2021, of the company.

NOTE 22: MEMBERS' GUARANTEE

The company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. If the
company is wound up, the Constitution states that each member is required to contribute to a maximum of
$10 each towards meeting any outstandings and obligations of the company. At 30 June 2021 the number of
members was 67. The combined total amount that members of the company are liable to contribute if the
company is wound up is $670.
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MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD
ABN: 96 130 300 355

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

The directors declare that:

1. there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all of its debts, as and
when they become due and payable; and

2. the financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits
Commission Act 2012.

Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission
Regulation 2013.

Director: 

Director: 

Dated this day of 2022

- 24 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled 
Health Services Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services 
Limited (the “Registered Entity”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 
2021, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, and the responsible entities’ declaration.  

In our opinion the financial report of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services 
Limited has been prepared in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-
profits Commission Act 2012, including: 

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Registered Entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of its 
financial performance for the year then ended; and  

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report.  We are independent of the Registered Entity in accordance with the 
auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities and Not for-profits Commission Act 
2012 “ACNC Act” and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) 
“the Code” that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia.  We have also fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  

Other Information  

Those charged with governance are responsible for the other information.  The other information 
comprises the information included in the Registered Entity’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 
2021 but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.  
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Pitcher Partners is an association of independent firms. 
An Independent Queensland Partnership ABN 84 797 724 539. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 
Pitcher Partners is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Limited, the members of which are separate and independent legal entities. 
 

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial report, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are [I am] required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Responsible Entities and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Report. 

The responsible entities of the Registered Entity are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the 
ACNC Act, and for such internal control as the responsible entities determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial report, responsible entities are responsible for assessing the Registered 
Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the responsible entities either 
intends to liquidate the Registered Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Registered Entity’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our [my] opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Registered Entity’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by responsible entities.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the responsible entity’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Registered Entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Registered Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
 
 

PITCHER PARTNERS 
 
 
 
 
JASON EVANS 
Partner 
 
Brisbane, Queensland 
01 March 2022 
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